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Of Woodbury County
PATRICK E GILL Phone (712) 279-6702
Auditor/Recorder Fax (712) 279-6629

December 15, 2004

Members of the Board of Supervisors and the
Citizens of the County of Wocdbury, lowa:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County of Woodbury, lowa, for the
year ended June 30, 2004, is hereby submitted. Respansibility for both the accuracy of
the data, and the completeness and faimess of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the County. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the
enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner that
presents fairly the financial position and results of operations of the County. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the County's
financial activities have been included.

This comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four (4) sections:
introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section, which is
unaudited, includes this letter of transmittal, the County’s organizational chart and a list
of the principal elected and appointed officials. The financial section includes the
independent auditors’ report on the basic financial statements, management's
discussicn and analysis, the basic financial statements, required supplementary
information, and the combining of individual fund statements and schedules. The
statistical section, which is unaudited, includes selected fihancial and demographic
information, generally presented on a multi-year basis.

The County is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the
provisicns of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget's Circular A-133, Audifs of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profif
Organizations.  Information related to this single audit, including a schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, schedule of findings and questicned costs, and the
independent auditors’ reports on compliance and on intemnal control over financial
reperting and on compliance with requirements applicable to each majer program and
internal control over compliance, are included in the single audit section of this report.

The County of Woodbury, lowa, is a municipal corporation governed by an elected five-
member board known as the Board of Supervisors. In addition to the Board of
Supervisors, there are three other elected officials, the County Attormey, the County
Treasurer and the County Auditor & Reccrder. The County provides a full range of



services. These services include law enforcement, health and social services, parks and
cultural activities, planning and zoning, construction and maintenance of secondary
roads, education and general administrative services. As required by U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the County of
Woodbury, lowa, (the primary government) and its component units. Component units
are legally separate entities for which the primary government is financially accountable.
The County has one discretely presented compenent unit, Siouxland District Health.

This report includes all the funds of the County. Included in the Public Safety and Legal
Services Fund are the expenses of the offices of the County Attorney, the County
Sheriff, the Medical Examiner and Emergency Services. [ncluded in the Physical Health
and Social Services Fund are Sicuxland District Health Department, General Relief
Department, the Department of Human Services and Veterans Affairs Department.
Included in the County Environment and Education Fund are the expenses of the
Woodbury County Conservation Comission, Planning and Zering Department, Soil
Conservation and Weed Eradication. Included in the Roads and Transportation Fund
are the expenses of the Secondary Roads Division. Included in the Government
Services to Residents Fund are the expenses for County Recorder's Department, Motor
Vehicle Department, the Elections Department and the Included in the Administration
and Nonprogram Fund are the expenses for the County Treasurer's Tax Division, the
Auditor's Department, the Human Resources Department, the Communications Center
and the Woodbury County Information and Communication Commission.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of
the primary government's operations and are included as part of the primary
government. The County reports eleven drainage districts as blended component units.
Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the
combined financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
primary government and to differentiate their financial position, results of operations and
cash flows from those of the primary government.

Economic Condition and Outlook

Location and Population: The County of Woodbury, lowa, is located in northwest lowa
bounded on the west by the Missouri River which also serves as the boundary and a
point of intersection for three states, lowa, Nebraska, and Scouth Dakota. Woodbury
County borders Plymouth and Cherokee Counties to the north, Ida County to the east
and Monona County to the south. The County of Woadbury's, U.S. Census Bureau's
2002 estimated population was 103,331.

Employment Data: The County of Woodbury, fowa, had a 5.9% unemployment rate

s

and 49,700 employed as of October 2004.

Major Projects and Developments: There have been a significant number of projects
that have occurred from 1998 through 2004 that have affected the economic outlock for
the County of Woodbury, lowa:

Education: On August 11, 1998, the residents of the County of Woodbury,
lowa, passed a schools infrastructure local option sales and service tax that
provides local school districts with over $10,000,0C0 of funds annuaily through
September 30, 2008 to build new and repair existing infrastructure. In the Sioux



City Community Schaool District, construction of two new middle schools was
completed in 2001 and 2003 and extensive renovation of another was completed
in 2002. Construction of an elementary school is set to begin in 2004.

There are two, four-year liberal arts colleges, Briar Cliff and Morningside and a
Community College, Western lowa Tech. located in Sioux City.

Retail/Service: Retail activity in the County of Woodbury, lowa, continues to be
strong and Sioux City continues to establish itself as a regional retail center.

The Gorden Drive corridor on the east side of Sioux City has seen a variety of
new retail development take place. War Eagle Drive on the west side of Sioux
City has also seen retail development and services added. A Super Wal-Mart
has opened along Floyd Boulevard on the north side of Sioux City. On the
southeast side of Sioux City, extensive retail development continues at a strong
pace in the area around the Southern Hills Mall. This retail development has
bolstered the $9 million in local option tax the City of Sioux City collects and the
$1.65 million the County collects.

The City of Sergeant Bluff is a vibrant community bordering southern Sioux City
and is experiencing rapid growth in both retail and residential areas.

Industrial and Business Parks: There are several industrial and business
parks in the tri-state area that continue to see growth and new ones are being
developed.

The Bridgeport Industrial Park saw the opening of a new frozen food storage
facility and the relocation of a steel company. Sioux City Is clearing the way for
development at the Airport Business Park. North Sioux City and Dakota Dunes
in South Dakota continue to add to their industrial and business parks to further
enhance the economic vitality of the tri-state area.

Total Market Valuation: An important economic indicator is the trend of market
valuations. The assessed value of real property in the County of Woodbury, lowa, grew
from $2,173,713,832 in fiscal year 1994-95 to $3,659,429,827 in fiscal year 2003-2004.
That represents a growth of 68% over the ten-year pericd.

Transportation: A major four-lane limited access by-pass was completed connecting
U.S. Highway 75 and U.S. Highway 20. It provides a four-lane artery from the northeast
corner of Sioux City proceeding south, intersecting with U.3. 20, continuing south and
lcoping around to the west and intersecting with Interstate 29 and continuing across the
Missouri River into Nebraska. This completion opens a huge area for further
development. Woodbury County continues to push for the improvement of U.S. 20 to a
four lane highway and U.S. 60 continues to see major improvements that will provide an
efficient transportation route to the Twin Cities of Minnesota.

Conclusion: QOverall, the economic indicators for the County of Woodbury, lowa,
appear to be strong. Building and construction activity are expected to remain high and
the employment picture also remains bright. Econcmic development efforts continue to
focus on the diversification of the local economy while taking advantage of its tri-state
location along the Missouri River.



Major Initiatives

The Last Five Years: The County has completed several major projects in the last five
years. The courthouse heating and air conditioning system was completely revamped.
Recent Courthouse projects include the eighth floor being returned to a meeting room,
restoration of the courtrooms and the Board of Supervisors meeting room and the
installation of a new roof. The County care facility was closed and the residents were
moved into the community. The care facility was remodeled to house minimum-security
prisoners and alleviate the overcrowding at the county jail. The Trosper/Hoyt Building
underwent renovation to accemmodate the relocation of the Department of Mator
Vehicles from the basement of the courthouse to the first floor of that building. The
Department of Human Services was moved from the first floor to renovated offices in a
different area of the building. A mapping project that converted the County’s plat maps
from hard copy to a digital database has been completed. The County's finance system
was converted {o enterprise software that meets the requirements of U.S. generally
accepted accounting standards. The County launched a website to provide access to
users and to educate the public about services and a new phone system was installed
including voice-mail.

The Siouxland District Health Department outgrew their former building. The County
purchased a building and renovated it to house them. The project has been completed
and the district health department is operating from their new location.

For the Future: I[n order to be proactive in the area of economic development, the
County has established an economic development department and continues to develop
a comprehensive plan to assure responsible growth in the rural area of the County.

The County recently has launched an aggressive capital improvement program designed
to identify neglected maintenance and repair issues and take needed action to protect
the county’s assets.

The Board of Supervisors of the County of Woodbury, lowa, continues to monitor the
overcrowding of the county jail. There are several committees that have met and
studied various aspects of the issue. They have been successful in identifying and
impiementing efforts to reduce the pressure on the jail short-term and planning for a
long-term solution. An architectural firm has presented options to design a long-term
solution to the overcrowding problem.

Department Focus: Each year the County will focus attention on the efforts and
accomplishments of a selected department. This year, the County Attorney's Office has

(e LS,

been selected for this purpose.

The County Attorney is our county’s chief law enforcement officer, chief prosecuting
attorney, and the legal advisor and lawyer for our county government.

The County Attorney prosecutes violations of state criminal laws, seeks justice in
criminal cases, and advocates for the protection of crime victims and for community
safety.



The County Attorney works closely with local, state and federal law enforcement
agencies in criminal investigations, and piays a central role in the criminal justice
system. The County Attorney also represents the state in juvenile court cases {juvenile
delinquency cases, and child-in-need-of-assistance cases), seeking to hold youthful
offenders accountable for their offenses, and fighting for the protection of abused and
neglected chiidren.

The County Attorney also provides legal advice to the Board of Supervisors and county
officers concerning county matters, and represents and defends the state, county and its
officers in officially related cases.

The County Attorney’s outstanding team of assistant county attorneys and support
personnel are all professionals who are devoted to excellence in public service.

The Woodbury County Attorney’s Office is organized by divisions; there is a Criminal
Division, a Juvenile Division and Civil Division and these three divisions are support by
the County Aftorney's Administrative Services Area. The County Attorney's Staff
consists of the elected official, a first assistant, fifteen assistant county attorneys, an
office manager and six secretaries.

Financial Information

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
controt structure designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected
from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to
ailow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principies. The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed
the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

Single Audit: As a recipient of federal, state and local financial assistance, the County
is also responsible for ensuring that adequate intemnal control structures are in place to
ensure and document compliance with applicable laws and reguiations related to these
pregrams.  This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by
management of the County.

As part of the County’s single audit, described earlier, tests were made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including those related to federal awards, as
well as to determine that the County has complied with applicabie laws and regulations.

Budgeting Controls: In addition, the County maintains extensive budgetary controls.
The objective of these controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied
in the annual apprepriated budget approved by the County Board of Supervisors.
Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, capital projects fund, and the debt
service fund are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary
control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated
amount) is at the totai program service area level. The County also maintains budgetary
cantrol beyond the State required program service area levei at the major object of
expenditure basis within each County department.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis: GAAP requires that management provide a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of
transmittal is designed to compiement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.
Woodbury County’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

General Fund Balance: The undesignated fund balance of the general fund decreased
by 16% in 2004. The $3,484,730 provides the County with a fund balance that meets
cash flow needs prior to the collection of property taxes and significantly reduces the
likelinood of the County entering the short-term debt market to pay far current operating
expenditures. The amount of undesignated fund balance of the general fund meets the
criteria of the County Auditor’s office’s minimum requirement.

Debt Administration: On June 30, 2004, the County had two general obligation debt
issues outstanding and one loan from the City of Sioux City. The County issued
$800,000 in capital loan notes in 2003 to remodel the Metz building and for Courthouse
remcdeling. The loan from the City of Sioux City for the Sheriff's jail software was
$92,766. Both of these issues have a $640,000 remaining balance. Property tax dollars
are being used to fund these expenditures.

The County maintains an A" rating from Standard & Poor's and an “A" rating from
Moody’s for general obligation debt.

Under state statutes, the County’s general obligation bond issuances are subject to a
legal limitation based on 5% of its gross assessed valuation. As of June 30, 2004, the
County’s general obligation indebtedness of $1,372,766 was well below the legal limit of
$232,434.415 and debt per capita equaled $13.17.

Cash Management: Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand
deposits, certificates of deposit, obligations of the U.S. Treasury, and obligations
guaranteed by the United States or its agencies. The average yield on investments was
3.43%. The County earned interest revenue in governmental funds of $532,731 on all
investments for the year ended June 30, 2004.

The County's investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining
a competitive yield on its portfolio. Accordingly, deposits were insured by federal
depository insurance or covered by the state’s sinking fund. The majority of County
investments during the year ended at June 30, 2004, are classified in the category of
lowest risk as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Risk Management: The County's liability, property and worker's compensation claims,
insurance and administration program is accounted for in the Internal Service Fund. The
program involves risk control technigues and provides to meet loss situations, which do
occur, using a blend of internal and external resources. A claims retention program in
which an assumption of appropriate deductibles is made represents internal funding of
losses. During the fiscal year 2004, the deductible for each liability and property claim
was $250,000 and for each worker compensation claim was $250,000. External funding
involves the purchase of insurance to finance those losses, which the County cannot
comfortably retain itself. Individual claims in excess of the deductible are insured up to
$9.750,000 for liability, replacement costs up to $64,118,592 for property, and statutory



amounts for worker's compensation. The goals of the current risk management program
are to lower long-term costs and to reduce dependence on the insurance market, which
lessens the effect of annual rate increases and/or capacity crunches.

Other Information

Independent Audit: State statutes require an annual audit by the Auditor of the State
or by a certified public accountant. The County has complied with this requirement by
contract with Williams & Company, P.C. to provide an independent audit. In addition to
meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was alsc designed to meet
the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act and the related U.S. Office of
Management and Budget's Circular A-133. The auditors’ report on the basic financial
statements, the required supplementary information, and the combining and individual
fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The
independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable
basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the basic financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. The auditors’ reports related specifically to the Single
Audit are included in the Single Audit section.

Awards: The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting o the County of Woodbury, lowa,
for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2003. This was the fourth year that the government has received this prestigious award.
in order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government published an easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both the U.S. GAAP and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificale.

Acknowledgements: The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
was made possible by the dedicated services of the Auditor's office staff. We would like
to express our appreciation to all members of our staff who assisted and contributed to
the preparation of this report. Appreciation is also expressed for the excellent
assistance received from our independent accountants, Williams & Company, P.C. We
would also like to thank the Board of Supervisors of the County of Woodbury, lowa, for
their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the
County in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Patrick F. Gill Dennis D. Butler
Auditor and Recorder, Budget/Tax Analyst
County of Woodbury, lowa County of Woodbury, lowa
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June 30, 2003

A Certificate of Achievement for Exccllence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports {CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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VISION STATEMENT

WOODBURY COUNTY WILL BE A
LEADER IN PROVIDING
CUSTOMER-FRIENDLY SERVICE
THROUGH INNOVATIVE
TECHNOLOGY, CONTINUOUS
PROCESS IMPROVEMENT AND
COLLABORATIVE EFFORTS

IN THE TRI-STATE AREA
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Suite 700 Terra Centre
600 Fourth Street

WILLIAMS

— & COMPANY:c Sioux City, IA 51102-0298

Certified Public Accountants Phone (712) 252-5337

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Supervisors
Woodbury County, lowa

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, sach major fund,
the aggregate remaining fund information and the component unit of WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA (the
County) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise the County's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the management of the County. Our responsibility is to express apinions on the financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Chapter 11 of the
Code of lowa and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
frorn material misstatement.  An audit inciudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporiing the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financiai position of the governmental activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining
fund information and the component unit of Woodbury County, lowa as of June 30, 2004, and the
respeciive changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then
ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information are not a required
part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Government
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 22,

tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts and grants. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County's basic financial statements. The accompanying introductory Section and Statistical
Information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements of Woodbury County lowa. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financiat statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.
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The accompanying combining non-major fund financial statements, and the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards which is presented for purposes of additicnal analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Lacal Governments, and Non-Profit
Crganizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

TSy ¥ Companst, P.C.

Certified Public Accountants

Sioux City, lowa
Qctober 22, 2004
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the County of Woodbury, lowa, (the County) we offer readers of
the County's financial staternents this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. We encourage readers
to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additionzl information
that we have furnished in our letter of fransmittal, which can be found on pages 3-9 of
this report.

Financial Highiights

e The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $66,978,670 (net assets). Of this amount, $11,084,615 (unrestricted
net assets) may be used to meet the County's ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

» The County’s total net assets increased by $2,844,152. This increase is attributable
to the cash management policies and procedures of the County.

* As of the close cf the current fiscal year, the County’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $11,247,550, an increase of $187,213 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 85% of this total amount,
$8.578,663, is available for spending at the County’s discretion (unreserved fund
balance).

» At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund
was $3,476,873, or 16% of total general fund expenditures.

« The County's total debt decreased by $653,350 (32%) during the current fiscal
year. The key factor in this decrease was the paydown of the County’s general
obligation capital loan notes originally issued for the remodeling of the Metz
building , courthouse renovations and equipment purchases. There was no new
indebtness during the current fiscal year by the County.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s
basic financial statements. The County's basic financial statements comprise three
compenents: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements,
and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report alse contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The govemment-wide financial statements
are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County finances, in a
manner simitar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assefs presents information on all of the County’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time,

increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as
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scon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardiess of the fiming
of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected
taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover ail or a significant portion of
their costs through users fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the County include law enforcement, health and social
services, parks and cultural activities, planning and zoning, construction and
maintenance of secondary roads, education and general administrative services. The
County has no business type activities.

The government-wide financial statements include not anly the County itself (known as
the primary government), but also a legally separate health organization for which the
County is financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is
reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 26-28 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting
to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the County can be divided into three categoeries: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the
same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resodrces, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’'s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial staterments, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmenial activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the County’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains twenty-four individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the
general fund, mental services fund, rural services fund, secondary roads fund, and the
debt service fund, alf of which are considered to be maior funds. Data from the other
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nineteen governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmentat funds is provided in the
form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 29-32 of this
report.

Proprietary funds. The County maintains one propristary fund. Internal service funds
are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
County's, various functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for its
self-insured health, general liability, and workers compensation insurance funds.
Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rater than business-type
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 34-36 of this
report,

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held in an agency
or custodial capacity for others. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-
wide financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available to
support the County's, own programs. The accounting used for these fiduciary funds is
concentrated an the net assets of the funds due to their agency nature.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 37 of this report.

Component unit. As discussed earlier, Siouxland District Health is a component unit
of the County. The basic component unit financial statements can be found on pages
28-30 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financiat statements can be found on pages 38-
50 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report alse presents certain required supplementary information concerning

M

the County’s, actual results in comparison to their original and amended budgets.
Required supplementary information can be found on pages 51-55 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmaior
governmental funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on
pages 56-77 of this report.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a County’s
financial positicn. In the case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by $66,578,670
at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

By far the largest porticn of the County's net assets (81%) reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, and equipment), less any related
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The County uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the County’s, investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

County of Woodbury, lowa, Net Assets

2004 2003
Governmental Componant  Governmental Component
Activities Unit Activities Unit
Current and cther assets $45,508,720 $1,211,941 § 39,285,601 $ 930,054
Capital assets 49,107,854 170,343 48,307,516 201,444
Totat Assets 95,016,574 1,382,284 87,593,117 1,131,498
Long-term liabiiities cutstanding 1,040,000 2,026,116
Cther liabilities 26,997,904 287,328 25,094,415 237,190
Total liabilities 28,037 904 287,326 27,120,531 237,190
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 55,669,646 311,559 49,057,268 201,444
Restricted 224,408 39,875 97,454 33,765
Pricr peried adjustment 3,661,832
Unrestricted 11,084,615 743 484 11,317 864 659,099
Total net assets $66,978,670 31,094 958 § 64,134 518 $ 894,308

An insignificant portion of the County's net assets represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net assets {$11,084,615) may be used to meet the County’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in all
three categories of net assets, both for the County as a whole, as well as for its

separate governmental and cormponent unit activities.
The County's net assets increased by $2,844,152 during the current year. This

increase is attributable to the operations of the activities of the County. The
component unit net assets increased by $268,714.

In the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2003, an error was made in
accounting for the infrastructure construction in progress. These costs were expensed
rather than capitalized as appropriate. An errar was also made in accounting for
accounts receivable in the EMS Loan special revenue fund. Accounts receivable for
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the EMS loans issued in prior years were not recorded. In addition, an error was made
for unearned revenue in the LLEBG special revenue fund. The County received an
advance of grant funds which had not been expended as of June 30, 2003. These
errors have been corrected in the amount of $3,661,332.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the Counly's, net assets
by $2,844,152. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

County of Woodbury, lowa, Change in Net Assets

Revenue:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes and penalties

Intergovernmental revenues not restricted to

specific programs
QOther
Total revenues

Expenses:
Pubiic safety and legal services
Physical health and social services
Mentai health
County environment and educaticn
Heads and transportation
Government services to residents
Administration
Non-program
Capital Projects
Unallocated Depreciation expense
Interast on long-term debt
Total Expenses
Increase in net assets
Net assets - beginning
Prior period adjustment
Net assets — beginning as restated
Net assets - ending

M - N Hd Ny
= Taxes increased by $1.,27

2004 2003
Governmental  Component  Governmental  Component
Activities Unit Activities Linit
$ 2218203 § 339,605 $ 5,552,937 § 357679
11,632,140 4,563,154 12,628,430 4,084,253
3,226,723 1,735,300
20,589,955 19,302,914
312,618 364,513
2,936,402 3,317,980
1,478,933 374,898 1,235,087 103,739
42,384,975 5,277,857 44 041,161 4,545,871
10,281,820 9,575,098
3,887,076 5,077,007 3,897,749 4,276,957
8,984,380 8,678,503
1,505,262 1,375,108
7,209,753 8,557,908
1,968,016 5,397,565
5,015,906 5,838,111
57,770
336,157
219,455 183,624
75,228 81,684
39,550,823 5,077,007 43,689,350 4,276,957
2,844,152 200,850 351,811 268,714
60,472,586 894,308 60,120,775 625,584
3,661,932 - - -
654,134,518 894,308 60,120,775 525,504
$ 66,978,670 $1.094,858 §$60472586 § 894,308
tho yas- o o for o

a 0A4 {79 durino
T \l {UI uulllls

Lo yodai

W TGRS W U o pidliiiud

shortfall in intergovernmental aid. Also the County increased the allocation of taxes
to keep the Self Liability Fund cash balances viable and increased taxes in the
Rural Basic Fund as the Board of Supervisors moved a portion of the Sheriff's
Uniform Patral from the General Basic to the Rural Basic Fund.
« QOperating and capital grants for governmental activities increased by $495,133.

For the most part, increases in expenses related to allocation of depreciation expense
by function during the year and operating expenses closely paralleled inflation and

growth in the demand for services.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the County's financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a County’s net resources
availahle for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County’s, governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $11,247,550, an increase of $187,213 in
comparison with the prior year. The unreserved fund balance, which is available for
spending at the County's discretion, decreased approximately $285,528, while the
reserve for inventories increased approximately $204,391. The remainder of fund
balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has
already been committed to pay debt service ($97,454).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $3,476,873, while total
fund balance reached $3,484,730. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may
be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total
fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 16.3% of total general fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 16.3% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the County’s, general fund decreased by $665,965 during the
current fiscal year. Key factors in this decrease are as follows:

*+ The elimination of funding by the State of lowa for personal property tax
replacement in the amount of $326,859.

» Priscner re-imbursements for care & keep fell by $115,940

» An increase in administration expenses due primarily to increased WCICC and
Communication Center expenses totaling approximately $206,513.

The mental health fund has a total fund balance of $1,455,927, which is an increase of
$187,448 from the prior year. Key factor in this increase are as follows:

services grant and the state allowable growth/incentive program re-imbursements.

» Revenues received from the State of lowa for case managemeant, communi
The rurat services fund has a tctal fund balance of $140,186, which is an increase of
$20,477 from the prior year. Key factor in this increase are as follows:

+ Building and zoning permit fees were increased substantially.

The secondary roads fund has a total fund balance of $4,525,890, which is an
increase of $345,293 from the pricr year. Key factors in this increase are as follows:
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* Anincrease in miscellaneous grants from prior years of approximately $408,112.

The debt service fund has total fund balance of $230,251, all of which is reserved for
the payment of debt service. The net increase in fund balance during the current year
in the debt service fund was $132,797

* A refund for construction costs on the Metz building in the amount of $103,525
which will be used to pay down a capital loan note.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget resulted from
two amendments, one increasing revenues by $12,521 and one increasing revenues
by $1,484,713, for a net increase of $1,497,234. These amendments increased
budgeted expenditures by $409,423, and 31,577,061, for a net increase in
expenditures of $1,986,484. These amendments can be briefly summarized as follows:

o $1,461,808 increase in intergovernmental revenues,

$35,426 increase in miscellaneous revenue,

$385,621 increase in public safety and legal services expenditures,
$106,322 increase in physical health and saocial services,

$590,156 increase in mental health expenditures,

$13,531 increase in County environment and education expenditures,
$302,954 increase in administration expenditures,

$54,991 increase in roads and transportation expenditures,
$34,909 increase in government services to residents expenditures,
$448,000 increase in capital outlay and

$50,000 increase in non-program expenditures.

Of this increase, $1,484,713 was to be funded out of increases in various
intergovernmental revenues, charges for services and miscellaneous revenues. The
remaining amount was to be budgeted from available fund balance. During the year,
however, revenues exceeded budgetary estimates and expenditures were less than
budgetary estimates, thus eliminating the need to draw upon existing fund balance.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The County’s, investment in capital assets for its governmental
activities as of June 30, 2004, amounts to $57,042,412 (net of accumulated
depreciation of $27,611,448). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings
and system, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways,
and bridges. The total increase in the County's, investment in capital assets for the
current fiscal year was 11.7%.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

+ The construction of bridges and roads total $1,800,349 for the Secondary Roads
Fund.

23



» The acquisition of a road grader, vehicles, and other equipment for the secondary
roads fund in the amount of $688,064.

* Land improvements to County parks and park equipment in the amount of
$351,863.

» The Glen Ellen Project in which the County purchased land and homes to avoid a
potential flood risk in the amount of $721,985.

» Improvements tc the County Courthouse totaling approximately $309,965.

» Improvements to the LEC building totaling $144,254.

¢ Cars and equipment for the Sheriff's department in the amount of $126,030.

County of Woodbury, towa, Capital Assets

2004 2003
Governmental  Component  Governmental  Component
Activities Linit Activities Unit
Land $ 4,498,697 $§ 2,775,868
Construction in Progress 3,435,861 § 141255
Land Improvements 580,977 452,500
Buildings and structures 20,517,126 83,160 20,263,966 § 83,160
Machinery and equipment 10,602,073 244 314 10,280,048 244,314
WCICC joint venture 424,391 352,115
Infrastructure 44 584,735 42,307,777
84,653,860 327474 76,472,274 327474
Less accumulated depreciation (27,611,448) (157,131) {25,388,800) (126,030)
Net capital assets $57042412 F 170,343 $ 51,083,384 $ 201,444

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in note 6 on pages
48-49 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had total bonded
debt outstanding of $1,280,000. The remainder of the County’s debt represents a note
payable related to the joint venture of the Woodbury County Information and
Communicatian Commission.

County of Woodbury, lowa, Qutstanding Debt

2004 2003
Governmental Compeonent Governmental  Component
Activities Unit Activities Unit
Bonds payable $1,280,000 $1,845,G00
Notes payable 92 766 181,116
Total $1,372,766 3 - $2.026,116 &

The County's total debt decreased by 3$653,350 (32%) during the current fiscal year.
The key factor of this decrease was the pay-off of the two capital loan notes for the
remodeling of the Trosper Hoyt building and courthouse renovations.
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The County maintains a “A” rating from Standard & Poor's and an “A” rating from
Meody's for general cbligation debt.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may
issue to 2% of its total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the County is
$232,434,415, which is significantly in excess of the County’'s cutstanding general
obligation debt.

Additional information on the County’s long-term debt can be found in note 7 on pages
49-5Q of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The unempioyment rate for the County is currently 5.4%, which is an increase from
a rate of 3.7% a year ago. This compares favorably to the state's average
unemployment rate of 4.8% and the national average rate of 5.4%.

« Total assessed valuation for the County decreased from $4,280,551,179 in 2002-
2003 to $4,384,101,116 in 2003-2004, for an average annual increase of 2.4%.

» |Inflationary trends in the region compare favarably to national indices.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the County’s budget for the 2004
fiscal vear.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund decreased
to $3,476,873. The balance of the cash reserves in the general fund will be used to
help get to the state recommended cash reserve levels.

Requests for Infermation

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances
for all those with an interest in the County’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the County Auditor/Recorder, 2620 Douglas Street, Sioux City,
1A 51101.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2004

Primary Government

Compaonent Unit

Governmental Siouxiand
Activities District Health
ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments 11,723,119 511,354
Receivabies:
Property Tax 96,801
Future Property Tax 22,476,834
Accrued Interest 194,320
Accounts 152,632 321
Assessments 17,471
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 2,024,206 459,011
inventories 1,288,779
Land (Note B) 4,498,697
Construction in Progress 3,435,861 141,255
infrastructure, Praperty and Equipment, Net
of Accumulated Depreciation (Note 6) 49,107,854 170,343
Total Assets 95,018,574 1,362,284
LIABILITIES
Accountis Payable 2,293,410 133,438
Unearned Revenue 22,626,112
Accrued Interest Payable 5,842
Accrued Claims Paysble 629,187
Salaries and Benefits Payable 401,307 24,410
Compensated Absences 709,280 129,478
Long Term Debt (Note 7)
Due within one year 332,766
Due in more than one year 1,040,300
Total Liabilities 28,037,904 287,326
NET ASSETS
invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt 55,669,646 311,599
Restricted for:
Debt Service 224,409
Medicaid Administrative Clearing 39,875
Unrestricted 11,084,615 743,484
Total Net Assets 66,978,670 1,094,958

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Program
Revenues

Charges far

Functions/Programs Expenses Services
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
Public safety and legal services $ 10,281,820 666,194
Physical health and social services 3,897,076
Mental heaith 8,984,380 30,574
County environment and education 1,505,262 31,415
Roads and transportation 7,209,753 3,965
Government services to Residents 1,968,016 1,366,468
Administration 5,015,906 101,596
Non-program 57,770
Capital Projects 336,157 17,991
Unailocated depreciation expense 219,455
Interest on long-term debt 75,228
Total governmental activities 3 39,550,823 2,218,203
Component Unit:
Siouxland District Health 3 5,077,007 339,605

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital
Grants Grants Governmental Component
Contributions Contributions Activities Unit
5 510,645 $ (9,104,981)
400,808 (3,496,168)
5,693,946 {3,259,860)
31,354 710,808 (731,685)
4,675,405 2,196,765 {333,618)
70,740 {530,808)
(4,914,310)
(57,770)
249,142 319,150 250,126
{219,455)
(75,228)
3 11,632,140 3,226,723 3 (22,473,757)
$ 4,563,154 $ (174,248)
General Revenues:
Property and other county tax levied for:
General Purposes 20,052,776
Debt Service 537,179
Interest and penalties on taxes 312,619
State tax credits 820,673
Local option sales tax 1,690,441
Gambling Taxes 295,667
General Intergovernmental revenues 129,621
Use of money and property 775,969
{Loss) on Saie of Assets (26,630)
Miscetlaneous 729,594 374,808
Total general revenues 25,317,909 374,898
Change in net assets 2,844 152 200,650
Net assets - beginning 50,472,586 894,308
Prior Period Adjustment 3,661,932 -
Net assets - beginning, as restated 64,134,518 894,308
Net assets - ending $ 66,978,670 $ 1,084,958

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Staterments
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
BALANCE SHEET

Governmental Funds

JUNE 30, 2004

Mental
General Health
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 3 3,707,253 2,558,695
Receivablas:
Property Tax 73,291 16,134
Future Property Tax 17,464,844 3,564,086
Accrued interest 142,125
Accounts 28,499 107
Assessments
Due from Cther Funds 163,510
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 678,747 90,042
fnventories 7,857
Total Assets 22,266,126 6,229,068
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 354,094 1,185,951
Due to Other Funds 1,714
Deferred Revenue 72,128 15,706
Unearned Revenue 17,464,844 3,564,088
Salaries and Benefits Payable 329,055 1,166
Compensated Absences 559,560 6,232
Tatal Liabilities 18,781,396 4.773,141
Fund Balances;
Reserved for Debt Service
Reserved for Inventories 7,857
Unreserved for:
General Fund 3,476,873
Special Revenue Fund 1,455,927
Capital Project Fund
Permanent Fund
Total Fund Balances 3,484,730 1,455,827
Total Ligbilities and Equity g 22,266,126 6,229,068

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Other Total

Rural Secondary Debt Governmental Governmental
Services Roads Service Funds Funds

$ 147276 % 2,781,108 3§ 223836 § 1,648,003 3§ 11,066,175
4,856 2,520 96,801
1,240,892 206,912 22,476,834
6,392 14,151 162,668

93,964 122,575

17,471 17,471

163,510

6,582 1,037,126 211,709 2,024,208
1,280,922 1,288,779

1,399,706 5,049,156 439,660 1,985,303 37,419,019
10,655 371,046 252,833 2,174,579
163,510 165,224

4,636 2,497 94,567
1,240,992 206,912 149,278 22,624,112
1.405 64,973 4,707 401,307

1,832 137,247 4,409 709,280
1,259,520 573,266 209,409 574,737 26,171,469
230,251 230,251

1,369,432 1,407,289

3,476,873

140,186 3,126,458 1,584,287 6,306,858
{205,068) (205,068)

31,347 31,347

140,186 4,525,890 230,251 1,410,566 11,247,550

$ 1,398,706 $ 5,099,156 3§ 439660 $ 1,885,303

Amaounts reported for Govarnmental Activities in the Statement of Nat assets are different because:

Infrastructure, property, and equipment used in governmental activities are not financial resourcas

ang, therefore, are not reported in the funds 57,042 412
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of self-insured haaith, genarat
liabifity, and worker compensation are included in the statement of net assets (27,651)

Deferred revenues and accrued expenses from the balance sheet that provide current financial

resources for governmental activities 89,125
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
in the funds (1,372,766)
Net Asssts of Governmental Activities b 66,978 670

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Mental
General Health
Revenue:
Property and other county tax $ 15,898,194 § 3,434,501
fnterest and penalty on property tax 312,619
intergovernmental 1,919,533 5,327,066
Licenses and permits 10,018
Charges for services 1,803,367 30,574
Use of money and property 449,997
Miscellaneous 149 490 212,523
Total Revenue 20,543,219 9,504,164
Expenditures:
Current operating:
Pubiic safety and legal services 9,967,452
Physical health and social services 3,636,524
Mental health 9,023,345
County environment and education 980,275
Roads and transportation
Government services to residents 1,608,257
Administration 5,048,182
Non-program services 57,770
Capital projects 17,737
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures 21,316,197 9,023,345
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (772,978) 480,818
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 293,371
Transfers (out) (186,358) (293,371)
Tatal other financing sources (uses) 107,013 (293,371)
NMet Change in Fund Balances (665,965) 187,448
Fund batances-beginning of vear 4,150,695 1,268,478
Prior Period Adjustment
Fund balances-beginning of year, as restated 4,150,695 1,268,479
Fund balances- end of year 3 3,484,730 % 1,455,927

See Accampanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Other Total
Rural Secondary Debt Governmental Governmental
Services Roads Service Funds Funds
$ 1,035,676 § 1,382,353 § 537,179 § 338,088 § 22,595,491
312,619
752,151 5,779,147 20,395 641,338 14,839,630
31,415 3,965 45,399
62,624 1,896,565
106,586 215,813 772,396
2 187,203 103,525 99,815 752,558
1,819,244 7,322,668 767,685 1,357,678 41,314,658
139,232 10,106,684
208,673 3,845,197
8,023,345
949,779 95,290 2,025,344
5,812,026 5,812,026
5,123 1,613,380
5,048,182
57,770
1,900,349 945,137 2,863,223
653,350 653,350
78,944 78,944
949,779 7,712,375 732,294 1,393 455 41,127,445
868,465 (389,707) 35,391 {35,777) 187,213
735,000 97,406 235,318 1,361,093
(848,988) (32,376) {1,361,093)
(848,888) 735,000 87,408 202,940 -
20,477 345,293 132,797 167,163 187,213
119,709 4,180,597 897,454 1,178,956 10,985,890
64,447 §4,447
119,709 4,180,597 97,454 1,243,403 11,060,337
3 140,186 % 4,525890 $ 230,251 § 1,410,566 § 11,247,550

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOwaA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENPITURES, AND CHANGES
iN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Amounts reparted for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 32) 3 187,213

Gevernmental funds report capital outlays, including infrastructure, as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is aliocated over their estimated useful
iives and reported as depreciation expense, Capital outlays exceeded depraciation expense in
the currant year as foflows;

Expenditures for capital assets 5 5,261,212
Depreciation expense (2,873,039) 2,388,173

Governmental funds report the proceeds from the sale of fixed assets as revenus whereas the
statement of activities reports the gain on the sale of fixed assets. This is the effect an the
change in net assets on the statement of activities. (26,530)

Revenues reported in the funds that are not availabie to provide current financlal resources (19,428)

Accrued interest expense that does not require current financial resources 3,718

Preceeds from issuance of long term debt

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of seif-insured health,
general liahility, and worker compensation are included in the staternent of net assets. The net
revenue of the intermal service funds is reported with governmental activities. (342,242)

The repayment of the principal of bonded long-term debt consumes the current financial
rezources of governmental funds without affecting the net assets, The statement of activities
does not reflect the payment of principal on bended fong-term debt. The principal paid on

bonded iong-term debt during the current year was: 653,350

2,844,152

Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 28) 3

See Accompanying Motes fo Financial Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Governmental Activities - Internal Service Fund

June 30, 2004

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Pooied investments
Receivables:
Accrued Interest
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Claims

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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556,944

31,6852
30,057
1,714

720,367

118,831
629,187

748,018

(27,651)




COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Governmental Activities - Internal Service Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Operating revenues:

Charges for services to operating funds 3 3,966,413
Reimbursement from employees/insurance 434,007
51,480

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenue 4,451,900
Operating expenses:

Claims paid 3,713,407

Insurance premiums 674,629

Administrative fees 357,525

Legal fees 115,433

Total operating expenses 4,860,994
Operating {loss) (409,0e4)
Nonoperating income:

Interest on investments 66,852
Net (Loss) {342,242)
Transfers from Other Funds -
Change in Net Assets (342,242)
Net assets - beginning 314,591
Net assets - ending 3 {27,651)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received fram employer contributions $ 3,936,546
Cash received from retiree/other contribution 434,007
Other operating revenue 51,480
Cash payments for insurance premiums and services (4,556,303}
Net Cash (Used) by Operating Activities (134,270}
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 66,326
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (67,944)
Cash and pooled investments - beginning of year 724 888
Cash and peoled investments - end of year $ 656,944
Reconciliation of operating (loss) to net cash used in
operating activities:
Operating (loss) 3 (409,094)
Change in assets and liahilities:
{Increase) in accounts receivable (29,867)
Decrease in prepaid expenses 280,446
Increase in accounts payable 88,828
(Decrease) in claims payable (64,583)
Net cash used in operating activities 3 (134,270)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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COUNTY OF WOODRBURY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2004

ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments
Receivables:
Property Tax
Future Property Tax
Accounts
Assessments
Interest
Due from Other Governments
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Governments
Trusts Payable
Compensated Absences
Salaries and Benefits Payable
Total Liabilities

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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5,095,030

407,344
94,061,558
36,058
840,138
926
140,624

100,581,678

150,257
100,281,297
56,869
65,011
28,144

$

100,581,678




COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,_2003

Note 1 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The County of Woodbury, fowa (the County) is a political subdivision of the State of lowa
and operates under the Home Rule provisions of the Constitution of fowa. The Caunty
operates under the Board of Supervisors form of government. Elections are on a partisan
basis. Other elected officiais operate independently with the Board of Supervisors. These
officials are the Auditor/Recorder, Treasurer, Sheriff, and Attorney. The County provides
numerous services to citizens, including law enfarcement, health and social services, parks
and cultural activities, planning and zoning, roadway construction and maintenance, and
general administrative services.

The County’s {inancial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is rasponsible
for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements
(Statements and Interpretations).  Governments are also required to follow the
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through
November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. The Gounty applies only the applicable FASB pronouncements issued prior
to November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting its one proprietary fund. The more
significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the County are discussed
below.

A. Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the County has included all funds, organizations,
agencies, boards, commissions and authorities. The County has also considered all
potential compenent units for which it is financially accountable, and other organizations
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the County are such that
exclusion would cause the County's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
The Governmental Accouniing Standards Board has set forth criteria to be considered in
determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of
an organization’s governing body and (1) the ahiiity of the County to impose its will on
that organization or (2} the potential for the grganization to provide specific henefits to or
impose specific financial burdens on the County.

These financial statements present Woodbury County (the primary government) and its
component units. The component units discussed below are included in the County's
reporting entity because of the significance of their gperational or financial relationships
with the County.

Blended Component Units are entities that are legally separate from the County, but are
so intertwined with the County that they are, in substance, the same as the County. They
are reported as part of the County and blended into the appropriate funds. Eleven
drainage districts have been established pursuant to Chapter 468 of the Code of lowa
for the drainage of surface waters from agricultural and other lands or the protection of
such lands from overflow. Although these districts are legally separate from the County,
they are controlled, managed, and supervised by the Woodbury County Board of
Supervisors. The drainage districts are reported as a special revenue fund. Financial
information of the individual drainage districts can be obtained from the Woodbury
County Auditor’'s Office.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOCWA
Notes {o Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Note 1 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

Giscretely Presented Component Unit - Siouxland Bistrict Health is presented in a
separate column to emphasize that it is legally separate from the County, but is fiscally
dependent on the County, Separate financial statements for Siouxland District Health
are not issued.

Jointly Governed Organizations - The County also participates in several jointly
geverned organizations that provide gocds or services to the citizenry of the County but
do not meet the criteria of a joint venture since there is no ongoing financial interest or
responsibility by the participating governments. The County Board of Supervisors are
members of or appoint representatives to the following hoards and commissions:
Woodbury County Assessor’s Conference Board, Woodbury County and Municipal Joint
Disaster Services Cammissian, County Joint E911 Service Board, and the Waoodbury
County Courthouse Foundation. Financial transactions of these organizations are
included in the County’s financial statements only to the extent of the County's fiduciary
relationship with the organization and, as such, are reported in an Agency Fund of the
County.

Basic Financial Statements — Government-Wide Statements

The County’s basic financial statements include hoth government-wide (reporting the
County as a whole} and fund financial statements (reporting the County’s major funds).
Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as
either governmental or business-type. The County's Public Safety and Legal Services,
Physical Health and Social Services, County Environment and Education, and
Government Services to Residents are classified as governmental activities. The
County's internal service fund is classified as a primarily governmental type activity.

In the gavernment-wide Statement of Net Assets, the governmental activities column (a)
is presented an a consalidated basis by column, (b) and is reported on a full accrual,
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well
as long-term debt and obligations. The County’s net assets are reported in three parts —
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net
assets. The Gounty first uses restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of
each of the County’s functions {administration, law enforcement, courts, roads, etc.) and
business-type aclivities. The functions are also supported by general government
revenues (property taxes, fines, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross
expenses (including depreciation} by related program revenues, operating grants, and
capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function.
Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or
capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The County does not allocate indirect costs. Certain expenses of the County are
accounted for through the internal service fund on & cost-reimbursement basis.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements,

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the County as an entity and
the change in the County’s net assets resulting from the current year's activities.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, lOwWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Note 1 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - {Continued)

C. Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The financiai transactions of the County are reported in individual funds in the fund
financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues
and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification
within the financial statements.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the
governmental or business-type activities categeries. Nonmajor funds by category are
summarized into a single column. GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria for the
determination of major funds. The County electively added funds, as major funds, which
had a specific community focus. The nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the
fund financial statements.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

Governmental Fund Types — The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement
(in the fund statements) is upon the determination of financial position and changes
in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than
upon net income. The County reports the following major governmental funds.

1) General Fund -~ The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County.
All general tax revenues and other revenues not allocated by law or contractual
agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund. From the fund are
paid the general operating expenditures, the fixed charges and the capital
improvement costs that are not paid from other funds.

2) Special Revenue Funds

The Mental Health Fund is used to account for property tax and other
revenues designated to be used to fund mental health, mental retardation,
and developmental disabilities services.

The Rural Services Fund is used to account for property tax and ather
revenues to provide services which are primarily intended to benefit those
persans residing in the County outside of incorporated city areas.

The Secondary Roads Fund is used to account for secondary road
construction and maintenance,

3) Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund is utilized to account for the
payment of interest and principal on the County’s general long-term debt.

Proprietary Fund Types — The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon
determination of operating incame, changes in net assets, financial position, and
cash flows. The generaily accepted accounting principles used are those applicable
to similar businesses in the private sector. The County reports the following
proprietary fund:
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Note 1 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

D.

1}y Infernal Service Fund — Accounts for the County's self-insured health, general
liability and workers compensation insurance funds.

The County's internal service fund is presented in the proprietary fund financial
statements. Because the principal users of the internal services are the
County’s governmental aclivities, the financial statements of the internal service
fund is consolidated into the governmental column when presented in the
government-wide financial statements. To the extent possible, the cost of
these services is reported in the appropriate functional activity.

Fiduciary Fund Types - Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in an agency
or custodial capacity for others and therefore not available to support County
programs. Since agency funds are custodial in nature, they do not involve the
measurement of results of operations and are not incorperated into the government-
wide statements.

The agency funds of the County account for the property taxes levied by political
subdivisions within the county, collections of those amounts by the county, and the
remittance of the collected amounts to the subdivisions.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the
timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Accrual accounting is used for all activities in the government-wide financial statements
and for the proprietary and fiduciary activities in the fund financial statements,
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Meadified accrual is used by all governmental funds in the fund financial statements.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual {i.e., when they become both measurable and available).
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available"
means coilectible within the current period or soon encugh thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. The government considers property taxes as available if
they are collected within 80 days after year-end. A one-year availability period is used
for revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. An exceptian to this
general rule is that principal and interest an general abligation debt, if any, is recognized
when due.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes and intergovernmental
revenues. Licenses, fines ard permits are not susceptible to accrual because generally
they are not measurable until received in cash.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Qperating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering gocds in connection with a proprietary fund’s principat ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the County’s internal service fund is
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for internal service
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COUNTY OF WOOQDBURY, [OWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Note 1 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - {Continued)

funds include the cost of services and administrative expenses. All revenues and
expenses not mesting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

. Budgets — The budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported as Required

Supplementary Information.

Cash and Pocled Investments — The cash balances of most County funds along with its
componrent unit are pooled and invested. The County has defined cash and cash
equivalents to include cash on hand and demand depasits. In addition, each fund’s
equity in the county’s investment poal is treated as a cash equivalent because the funds
can deposit or effectively withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty.
Interest earned on investments is recorded in the General Fund, unless otherwise
provided by law. The County and its component unit use the following method in
determining the reported amounts:

Type Method
Certificates of Deposit Cost

Property Tax Receivable - The Gounty's property tax rates were extended against the
assessed valuation of the County as of January 1, 2002 to compute the amounts that
became liens on property on July 1, 2003. These taxes were due and payable in two
installments on September 30, 2003 and March 31, 2004 at the County Treasurer's
Office. Praperty tax receivable represents taxes that are due and payable but have not
been collected.

Future Property Taxes Receivable — This represents taxes certified by the Board of
Supervisors to be collected in the next fiscal year for the purposes set out in the budget
for the next fiscal year. By statute, the Board of Supervisors is required to certify its
budget in March of each year for the subsequent fiscal year. However, by statute, the
tax asking and budget certification for the following fiscal year becomes effective on the
first day of that year.

Although the succeeding vear property tax receivable has been recorded, for
governmental funds the revenue is recorded as unearned revenue and will not be
recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied. For agency funds, as no
revenues are recorded, the amounts are reflected as being due from other
governments.

Due to/ffrom Other Funds - During the course of operations numerous transactions
occur befween individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These
receivables and payables are classified as “due from other funds® or "due to other
funds" on the balance sheet.

Due toffrom Other Governments - Due to/from other governments represents state tax
credits due from the State of lowa, various shared revenues, grants, and
reimbursements receivable and taxes and other revenues collected by the County which
wili be remitted to other governments.

Inventories - Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFQ) method.
The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when
consumed rather than when purchased.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, [OWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Note 1 -

Note 2 -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — {Continued)

L. Compensated Absences - County employees accumulate a limited amount of earned
but unused vacation and sick leave hours for subseguent use or for payment upon
termination, death or retirement. A liability is recorded when incurred in the government-
wide financial statements. A liability for vacation is reported in the fund financial
statements as all vacation is expected to be used within the next fiscal year. A liability
for sick leave is reported in the fund financial statements only for employees that have
resigned or retired. The compensated absence liability has heen computed based on
rates of pay in effect at June 30, 2004. The compensated absence liability attributable to
the governmental activities will be paid primarily by the General, Mental Health, Rural
Services and Secondary Roads Fund.

M. Deferred Revenue - Although certain revenues are measurable, they are not available.
Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. Deferred revenue represents the amount of
assets that have been recognized, but the related revenue has not been recognized
since the assets are not collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Deferred revenue consists of property
tax receivable not collected within sixty days after year-end.

N. Capital Assets — Capital assets, which include property, equipment and vehicles, and
infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, and similar iterns
which are immovable and of value only to the government), are reported in the
governmental activities column in the government-wide statement of net assets. Capital
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation. The costs of nermal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Reportable capital
assets are defined by the County as assets with initial, individual costs in excess of
$5,000. Property and equipment of the County is depreciated using the straight line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and Structures 39 -~ 50 Years
Infrastructure 15 - 70 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3 ~10 Years

O. Landfil - The County participates in a 28E agreement with Woodbury County Solid
Waste Agency and therefore, is not required to account for landfill post closure costs.

Deposits and Pooled Investments

The County's deposits at June 30, 2004 were entirely covered by Federal depesitory
insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of
lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the members of the pool to
insure there will be no loss of public funds.

The County is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States
government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of
deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the Board of Supervisors;
prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated commercial paper; perfected
repurchase agreements, certain registered apen-end management investment companies;
and certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage
district.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Note 2 - Deposits and Pooled Investments — (Continued)
The County's deposits at June 30, 2004 are as follows:
Carrying Bank
___ Value Balance
CashonHand ......ocooveei e, 3 6,678
Demand Deposits......ccocceeceecieienn, 8,029,437 S 9,138,692
Time Deposits .......ccvvveevviiviiin 8,782,034 8,782,034
Total . $ 16,818,149 $ 17920726
The Component units deposits at June 30, 2004 are as follows:
Carrying Bank
Value Balance
Demand Deposits...........cco 3 611,354 $ 611,354
Note 3 - Interfund Receivables and Payables
As of June 30, 2004, short-term interfund borrowings for operating purposes were as
follows:
Ffund Due fo Fund Due From Amount
General Nonmajor Governmental $163,510
Internal Service General 1,714
$165,224
Note 4 - Interfund Transfers
The detail of interfiund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2004 is as follows:
Transfer Qut:
General Mental Rural Nonmajor Transfer
Transfer In: Fund Health Services Governmental Qut
General Fund $ 293,371 S 293,371
Secondary Roads $ 735,000 735,000
Debt Service Fund $ 97,4086 97,408
Nonmajor Governmentai Funds 88,952 113,988 % 32,376 235,318

$ 186,358 § 293,371 § 848,988 §

32,376 §1,361,093

Transfers are used to:

1. Move resources from the fund statutorily required to collect the resources to the fund

statutorily required to expend the resources.

2. Move unrestricted revenues collected in the general and rural services fund to finance
various programs and capital projects accounted for in other funds in accordance with

budgetary authorizations.

3. Move receipts restricted to debt service from the fund collecting the receipts to the debt

service fund as debt service payments become due.

4. Make corrections for receipts recorded in or expenditures expended from the wrong

fund.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Note 5 - Capital Asseis

A summary of changes in capital assets, including the component unit, is as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in Progress

Total capital assets not being degreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land tmprovements

Buildings and Structures

Machinery and Equipment

WCICC

Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land Improvements

Buildings and Structures
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmentzal activities capital assets, net

Component Unit:

Capital assets net being depreciated:
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and Struciures

Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and Structures
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Public safety and legal services
Physical health and sccial services

Mental health

County environment and education
Roads and transpcrtation
Government services to residents

Unallocated Depreciation Expense

Balance Balance
July 1, June 34,
2003 Additions Deletions 2004
5 2,775,868 5 1,722,829 - $§ 4498657
- 3,435,861 - 3,435,861
2,775,888 5,158,690 - 7,934,558
452,500 138,477 540,977
20,263,966 253,160 20,517,126
10,280,048 999,136 § 677,111 10,602,073
392,115 32,276 424,301
42,307,777 2,276,958 44,584,735
73,696,408 3,700,007 877,111 76,719,302
- 6,464 6,464
3,657,687 586,011 4,243,698
7,722,089 837,749 650,481 8,009,357
14,009,114 1,342,815 15,351,629
25,388,800 2,873,039 650,481 27,611,448
48,307,516 826,968 26,630 49,107,354
51,083,384 5,985,658 26,630 57,042,412
- 141,255 - 141,255
- 141,255 - 141,255
83,160 - - 83,180
244,314 - - 244,314
327,474 - - 327,474
- 4,158 - 4,158
126.030 26,943 - 152,973
126,030 31,101 - 187,131
$ 201,444 $ {31.101) - $ 170,343
was charged to functions of the primary government as follows
g 349,065
89,798
2,453
97,918
2,101,966
12,394
219,455

45

S 2,873,039



COUNTY OF WOODBURY, i(OWA

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Note 6 -

Long-Term Liahilities

The County’s computed legal debt imit as of June 30, 2004, is $232,434 415 of which
$1,372,7686 is commitied for outstanding general obligation debt.

The following is a summary of changes in ieng-term liability for the year ended June 30,

2004

Balance beginning of year

Increases
Decreases
Balance end of year

Due within one year

Bonds Payable

General
Cbligation
Bonds/Capital Notes
Loan Notes Payable Total
$ 1,8453000 % 181,116 § 2,028,118
565,000 88,350 653,350
$ 1,280,000 § g2,766 § 1,372,766
3 240,000 $ 92,766 § 332,766

A summary of the County's June 30, 2004 general obligation bonded indebtedness is as

follows:
Date Amount Qutstanding
of Interest Annual Originally June 30

lssue Rates Payments Issued 2003

General Cbligation Bonds/

Capital Loan Notes:
Series 2002 2002 4.8% 80,000 $ B0C0CO0 § 640,000
Series 2003 2003 2.53% 160,000 800,000 540,000

$ 1,280,000

The annual requirements to amortize all bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2004, are as

follows:

Fiscal

2010-2014

Year
2005
2008
2007
2008
2009

General
Obligations

Bonds
Principal Interest
$ 240,000 $ 48,912
240,000 39,024
244,000 31,136
240,006 23,248
80,000 18,360
240,000 23,040
$ 1,280,000 $ 178,720

$230,251 is available in the Debt Service Fund to service the General Obligation Bonds. The

general opligation bonds are to be retired through property tax levies.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

Note 6 -

Note 7 -

Note 8 -

Long-Term Liabilities — {Continued)

Notes Payahle

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the County received a loan from the City of Sioux City
to jointly purchase new jail software for the Woodbury County I[nformation and
Communication Commission in the amount of $421,715. The note is payable in annual
installments with 5% interest.

The annual requirements to amortize the notes payable as of June 30, 2004 is as follows:

Fiscal
Year ___ Principal Interest
2005 $ 92,766 $ 4,638

S 92,768 5 4,638

Deficit Fund Balances

The County has two funds with deficit fund balances at June 30, 2004. The County intends
to finance these deficits from various resources including: general funds and grants.

The individual fund deficits were as follows:

Capital Projects — Courthause Renovation $204,518
Capital Projects — LEC 550

Risk Management

The County is self-insured for health insurance and has purchased a Stop Loss Policy for
medical insurance in excess of $100,000 per covered employee. A premium is charged to
each fund that has employees and is calculated using trends in actual claims experience.
Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims
that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). Claim lizbilities are caiculated considering
the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends including frequency and amount of
payouts and other economic and social factors. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities

follow;

2004 2003
Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year $ 362175 $ 321,692
Incurred claims (including IBNR's) 2,862,103 2,454,086
Claim payments {2,803,720) {2,414,503)
Unpaid ¢laims, end of fiscal year $ 420,558 $ 362,175
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Note 8 - Risk Management — (Continued)

The County also self-insures for warker's compensation and personal injury liability. incurred
but not reported claims for these coverages are estimated based on historical costs.
Changes in balances of the claims liabilities follow:

2004 2003
Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year $ 331,585 $ 92 637
Incurred claims (including IBNR’s) 28,687 485,008
Claim payments {151,653} {246,050)
Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year 208,629 331,585
Total unpaid claims § 629,187 § 683770

Property coverage, boiler, and elected officials errors and omissions policies are purchased
by the County from an insurer.

The self-insurance funds are accounted for in the Internal Service Fund. There have been
no significant changes in insurance coverage from prior year, nor were there settlements in
excess of coverage the last three years.

Note 9 - Pension and Retirement

lowa Public Employees Retirement System - The County contributes to the lowa Pubiic
Employees Retirement System (IPERS), which is a cost-sharing multipie-employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the State of lowa. IPERS provides retirement and
death benefits that are established by State statute plan to members and beneficiaries.
IPERS issues a publicly available financial repart that includes financial statements and
reguired supplementary information. The report may he obtained by writing to IPERS, P.C.
Box 9117, Des Moines, lowa 506306-8117.

Plan members are required to contribute 3.7% of their annual covered salary and the
County is required to contribute 5.75% of annual covered payroll except for iaw enfarcement
employees, in which case the percentages are 4.99% and 7.48%, respectively. Contribution
requirements are established by state statute. The County contribution to IPERS for the
years ended June 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $884,354, $850.660, and $834,742,
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

Note 10 - Cantingency

The County receives significant financial assistance from the U.S. government. Entitlemeant
to the resources is generally based on compliance with terms and conditions of the grant
agreements and applicable federal reguiations, including the expenditure of the resources
for eligivie purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to financial and compliance audits
by the grantors. Any disallowances as a result of these audits become a liability of the fund
that receives the grant. As of June 30, 2004, the County estimates that no material liabilities
will result from such audits.

The County is & defendant in @ number of lawsuits in its normal course of aperations. The
outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable and an estimate of possible losses
cannot be made,
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Note 11 -

Note 12 -

Conduit Debt Obligations

From time to time, the County has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial
assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and
commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the
property financed and payable solely from the private-sector entity. Neither the County, the
State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the
bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements.

As of June 30, 2004, Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding had an ariginal issue amount of
$27,324,000. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2004 was $23,492,744.

Joint Venture

The Woodbury County Information and Communication Commission (WCICC) was formed in
fiscal year 1988, WCICC was established to operate a combined data processing and
communications center for the City and the County. Each governmental unit selects twa of its
members to serve on the commission and the fifth member is selected by the commission. The
operating budget is approved by both governments with contributions for operations from both.
All assets, liabilities and equity are owned on a BG/40 basis. Summary financial information as
of, and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 is presented as follows:

Other Assets 3 1,153,844
Total Assets 1,153,844 ~
Total Liahilities 158,239
Fund Equity 995,605
Total Liabilities and Equity - 1,153,844
Total Revenue 1,945,340
Total Expenditures (1,864,870)

Net Increase in Fund Balance 3 80,470
The Woodbury County Information and Communication Commission does not publish a
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The County's share of the capita! assets are reported
in the governmental activities.

County’'s Share of Joint Venture;

Assets 40%
Liabilities 40%
Equity 40%
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Note 13 -

Note 14 -

Note 15 -

Construction Commitment

The County has entered into contracts totaling $3,132,107 for bridge construction and roadway
paving, gravel crushing, and courthouse renovations, As of June 30, 2004, costs of $1,665,945
had been incurred against the contract. The balance of $1,466,162 remaining at June 30, 2004
will be paid as work on the projects progress.,

The County’'s component unit entered into a contract totating $376,056 for building remodeting.
As of June 30, 2004, costs of $77,003 had been incurred against the contract. The halance of
$299,053 remaining at June 30, 2004 will be paid as work on the project progresses.

Subsequent Event

In July 2004, the County approved the issuance of General Obligation Loan Notes in the
amount of $800,000 to fund the costs of remadeling, reconstruction, and additions to public
buildings.

Prior Period Adjustment

In the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2003, an error was made in accounting
for infrastructure construction in progress. These costs were expensed rather than capitalized
as appropriate, An error was also made in accounting for accounts receivabie in the EMS Loan
special revenue fund. Accounts receivable for the EMS loans issued in prior years were not
recorded. In addition, an error was made in accounting for unearned revenue in the LLEBG
special revenue fund. The County received an advance of grant funds which had not been
expended as of June 30, 2003. These errors have been corrected and have had the following
effect on the beginning net assets for governmental activities in the government-wide financial

statements.
Government-Wide

Governmental
Activities

Beginning Net Assets, as previously reported 3 60,472,586
Adjustment for infrastructure construction in progress

as of 7/1/03 3,597,485
Adjusiment for unrecorded accounts receivable as of 7/1/03 139,539
Adjustment for unearned revenue as of 7/1/03 (75,092)
Beginning Net Assets as restated 3 64,134,518

The errars noted above also had the following effect on the beginning fund balance in the fund

financial statements:
Fund Financial Statements

EMS Loan LLEBG
Beginning Fund Balance, as previously reported S 37,983 5 188,417
Adjustment for accounts receivable as of 7/1/03 139,539
Adjustment for unearned revenue as of 7/1/03 (75,092}
Beginning Fund Balance as restated $ 177522 5 113,325
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE, BUDGET
AND ACTUAL, GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2004

General Fund

Variance with

Final Budgsat
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Qriginal Amended Actual {Negative)
Revenue:
Property and other county tax 15,883,085 S5 15883,965 § 15888,194 § {85,771)
Interest and penalty on property tax 249,000 249,000 312,619 63,619
Intergovernmental 2,193,201 2,623,139 1,819,533 (703,8086)
Licenses and permits - - 10,618 10,018
Charges for services 1,887,651 1,887,651 1,803,367 (84,284)
Use of money and property 700,000 700,000 449,997 (250,003)
Miscellaneous 71,226 108,652 149,490 42,838
Total Revenue 21,085,043 21,550,407 20,543,219 (1,007,188)
Expenditures:
Current operating:
Public safety and legal services 9,434,683 9,7501,975 8,967,452 {216,477)
Physical health and sccial services 3,783,103 3,889,425 3,635,524 252,501
Mental Health - -
County environmant and education S66,557 977,480 980,275 (2,795)
Roads and transportation - -
Government services ta residents 1,606,939 1,641,848 1,608,257 33,591
Administration 5,011,458 5,314,171 5,048,182 265,889
Non-program services 10,000 60,000 57,770 2,230
Capital projects 340832 340,832 17,737 323,085
Total Expenditures 21,153,572 21,574,731 21,316,197 658,534
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (68,529) (424,324) {772,978) (348,854)
Other financing scurces (uses):
Transfers in 2,626,789 2,628,789 293,371 (2,333,418}
Transfers out (2.724,195) {2,724,195) (186,358} 2,937,837
Total other financing sources (uses) {97,406) (07,408} 107,013 204,418
Net Change in Fund Balances {165,935) § (521,730) {865,965} $ (144,235)
Fund baiances-heginning of year 4.150,605
3 3,484,730

Fund balances- end of year
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Mental Health

Rural Services

Variance with

Variance with

Final Budget Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive Budgeted Amaounts Positive
Original Amended Actual {Negative) Original Amended Actual {Negative)
3,451,086 $§ 3,461,086 $ 3,434,001 $ (27,085) § 1,046,281 $§ 1,046,281 § 1035676 § {10,605}
4,949,994 5,533,864 5,827,066 293,202 28,984 28,984 752,151 723,167
- - 8,200 8,200 31,415 23,215
30,574 30,574 - -
230,000 250,000 212,523 (37.477) 2 2
8,661,080 9,244,950 9,504,164 258,214 1,083,465 1,083,465 1,818,244 735,779
8,984,821 8,574,677 9,023,345 551,832 - -
- - 234,477 237,085 948,779 (712,624)
8,984,821 9,574,577 9,023,345 551,832 234,477 237,085 948,778 {712,684}
(323,741) {330,027) 480,819 810,846 848,988 846,380 869,465 23,085
(293,371) {293,371) (848,988) (848,868) {848,988) -
- - {293,371) {293,371) (848,088) (6485,988) {848,988) -
(323,741) $  (330,027) 187,448 § 517,475 $ - % {2,608} 20477 § 23,085
1,268,479 119,708
5 14550927 $ 140,186
{Continued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
SCHEDULE GF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE, BUDGET
AND ACTUAL, GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2004
Secondary Roads

Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amaunts Positive
Original Amended Actual {Negative)
Revenue:
Property and ather county tax $ 1,325,000 § 1,325,000 § 1,352,353 § 27,353
Interest and penalty on property tax - -
Intergovernmental 4,870,000 4,970,000 5,779,147 80g,147
Licenses and permits 2,000 2,000 3,865 1,965
Charges far services - -
Use of maney and property - -
Miscellaneous 468,000 468,000 187,203 {280,797}
Total Revenue 8,765,000 6,765,000 7,322,688 557,568
Expenditures:
Current operating:
Public safety and legal services - .
Physical health and sccial services - -
Mental Health - -
County environmant and education - -
Roads and transportation 6,082,809 6,137,800 5,812,026 325,774
Government services to residents - -
Administration 16,319 16,560 - 16,560
Nen-program services - -
Capitai projects 1,800,000 1,900,000 1,800,349 {349)
Total Expenditures 7,999,128 8,054,360 7,712,375 341,985
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures {1,234,128) {1,289,360) (388,707) 899,653
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 735,000 735,000 735,000 -
Transfers out - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 735,000 735,000 735,000 -
Net Change in Fund Balances 3 (499,128) § (554,360} 345203 § 890,653
Fund balances-baginning of year 4,180,587
Fund balances- end cf year 5 4525800
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In accordance with the Code of lowa, the County Board of Supervisors annually adopts a budget
on the accrual basis folfowing required public notice and hearing for all funds except Agency
Funds and the Internal Service Fund, and appropriates the amount deemed necessary for each
of the different County offices and departments. The budget may be amended during the year
utilizing similar statutorily prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized in the
accrual budget and appropriations lapse at year end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon 10 major classes of expenditures known as
functions, not by fund or fund type. These 10 functions are: public safety and jegal services,
physical health and social services, mental health, county environment and education, roads and
transportation, governmental services to residents, administration, non-program, debt service and
capital projects. Function disbursements required to be budgeted include disbursements for the
General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Funds. Although
the budget document presents function disbursements by fund, the legal level of control is at the
aggregated function level, not by fund. Legal budgetary contral is aiso based upon the
appropriation to each office or department. During the year, two budget amendments increased
budgeted disbursements by $1,986,484. The budget amendments are reflected in the final
budgeted amounts.

In addition, annual budgets are similarly adepted In accordance with the Code of lowa by the
appropriate governing body as indicated: for the County Extension Office by the Coaunty
Agricultural Extension Council, for the County Assessor by the County Conference Board, for the
E911 System by the Joint E911 Service Board and for Emergency Management Services by the
County Emergency Management Commission.

During fiscal year 2004, the County had two budget amendments. The net amendments are as
folfows:

Criginai Amended

Function Budget Amendments Budget
Public Safety and Legal Services $ 9,808,891 $ 385,621 S 10,194,612
Physical Health and Sccial Services 3,785,103 106,322 3,891,425
Mental Health 8,984 821 590,156 9,574,977
County Environment 2,026,035 13,531 2,039,566
Roads and Transportation 6,082,809 54,591 6,137,800
Government Services {o Residents 1,752,939 34,909 1,787,848
Administration 5,106,882 302,854 5,408,836
Non-Program 10,000 50,000 60,000
Capital Projects 2,802,078 448,600 3,250,076
Debt Service 736,079 736,079

Total $ 41,095,735 $ 1,086,484 $ 43,082,218
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The following schedule demonstrates the County’s legal compliance to the budget:

Variance

Amended Favorable
Function Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Public Safety and Legal Services 3 10,194,612 $ 10,106,684 $ 87,928
Physical Health and Social Services 3,891,425 3,845,197 46,228
Mental Health 0,574,977 9,023,345 551,632
County Environment 2,039,566 2,025,344 14,222
Roads and Transportation 6,137,800 5,812,026 325774
Government Services to Residents 1,787,848 1,613,380 174,468
Administration 5,409,836 5,048,182 361,654
Non-Program 60,000 57,770 2,230
Capital Projects 3,250,076 2,863,223 386,853
Debt Service 736,079 732,294 3,785
Total 3 43,082,219 $ 41,127,445 S 1,954,774
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Component Unit

June 30, 2004

ASSETS

Cash and Pooled Investments
Receivables:

Accounts

Due from Other Governments
Construction in Progress
Capital Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Salaries and Benefits Payable
Compensated Absences
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
[nvested in Capital Assets
Reserved for Medicaid Administrative Clearing
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets
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611,354

321
459,011
141,255
170,343

1,382,284

133,438
24,410
129,478

287,326

311,599
39,875
743,484

1,004,958




COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Component Unit

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

QOperating revenues:
Intergovernmental 3 4,563,154
Charges for Services 339,605

Miscellaneous 374,898
Total operating revenue 5,277,657
Operating expenses:
Personal and Family Heaith 1,608,767
Communicable Diseases 180,820
Sanitarian 2,135,546
Administration 901,118
Elderly Services 209,645
Depreciation 31,101
Total operating expenses 5,077,007
Change in net assets 200,650
Net assets - beginning 894,308
Net assets - ending $ 1,094 958
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Nonmajor Funds
JUNE 30, 2004

Special Revenue Funds

Recorder County
Recorder Electronic EMS Government
Records Transaction L.oan Assistance
Management Fee Fund Fund
Assets
Cash and Pooled investments 3 147,035 § 22,689 § 86,101 % 58,203
Receivables:
Accrued Interest 1 557
Accounts 93,869
Assessments
Due from Cther Gavernmental Agencies 6,206 14,196
Total Assels 153,242 36,885 180,827 58,203
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 2,087
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Salaries and Benefits Payahle
Compensated Absences
Total Liabilities - - - 2,057
Fund Balances:
Unreserved for:
Special Revenue Fund 153,242 36,885 18G,627 58,146
Capital Project Fund
Permanent Fund
Total Fund Balances 153,242 36,885 180,627 56,148
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 153,242 § 36,885 § 180,627 § 58,203
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Special Revenue Funds

Supplemental

Infrastructure
Economic County Energy Drainage Environmental
Development Library Forfeiture REAP Conservation Districts Program
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
3 485427 § 59672 §$ 51,443 § 31,958 § 25,840 3 45798 3 13.802
254 2,412
17,471
54,094
539,521 68,672 81,697 31,859 25,840 53,269 16,014
135,000 2,509 3,232
2,439
4,409
135,000 8,357 - - - 3,232 -
404,521 80,315 61,697 31,959 25,840 60,037 16,014
404,521 80,315 61,697 31,854 25,840 60,037 16.014
5 539521 & 69672 § 61,697 & 31,859 § 25840 3 63.2685 § 18,014
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - {Continued)
Governmental Nonmajor Funds

JUNE 30, 2004

Special Revenue Funds

Nature Conservation
DARE Center LEEBG Reserve
Fund Fund Fund - Fund
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments % 23,841 § 151,836 § 136,267 § 256,766
Receivables:
Accrued Interest G,148 68 1,688
Accounts
Assessments
Due from Other Governmental Agencies 91,546
Total Assets 23,841 161,084 136,335 350,000
Liahilities and Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts Payzable 3,278 19,532
Due to Cther Funds
Deferred Revenue 129,438 19,840
Salaries and Benefits Payable 2,268
Compensated Absences
Total Liabilities - - 132,718 41,840

Fund Balances:
Unreserved for:
Special Revenue Fund 23,941 161,084 3,618 308,360
Capital Project Fund
Permanent Fund

Total Fund Balances 23,941 161,084 3,618 308,380

Total Liahilities and Equity 5 23,841 % 161,084 § 136,335 § 350,000
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Capital Projects

Metz Courthouse Permanent
Building LEC Renaovation Fund Total

3 31,324 § 1,648,003

23 14,151

93,969

17,471

3 45 B67 211,709

- - 45,667 31,347 1,085,303
87,225 252,833

$ 550 152,960 163,510
149,273

4,707

4,409

- 550 250,185 - 574,737
1,584,287

(550) {204,518} (205,068)

31,347 31,347

- {550) (204,518) 31,347 1,440,666
- 5 - § 45667 S 31,347 § 1,885,303
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COUNTY OF WOODEBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Governmental Nonmajor Funds
JUNE 30, 2004

Special Revenue Funds

Recorder County
Recorder Electraonic EMS Government
Records Transaction Loan Assistance
Management Fee Fund Fund
Revenue:

Property and other county tax 3 - [ - $ - [ -
Intergovernmentad
Charges for services 25,739 36,885
Use of maney and property 11 3,105
Miscellaneous

Tatal Revenue 25,750 36,885 3,105 -
Expenditures:
Current operating:

Public safety and legal services

Physical health and social services an,0z2s

County environment and education 38,316

Government services o residents 5,123
Capital projects

Total Expenditures - - - 71,464

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 25,750 36,885 3,105 (71,464
Cther financing scurces (uses):

Transfers in

Transfers (out)

Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -

Net Change in Fund Balances 25,750 36,865 3,108 (71,4643
Fund balances-beginning of year 127,482 37,083 127,610
Prior Fericd Adjustment 139,539
Fund balances-beginning of year, as restated 127,492 - 177,522 127.610
Fund balances- end of year § 153242 § 36,885 $ 180,627 5 56,146
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Special Revenue Funds

Supplemental

Infrastructure
Economic County Energy Brainage Environmental
Bevelopment Library Forfeiture REAP Conservation Districts Program
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
S 338,088 § - $ - 5 ~ $ - 3 - $ -
43,848 11,480 31,354

1,525 9,901

3,573 17,961
338,088 43,048 13,005 34,927 - 17,991 9,901

13,200
178,648

3,230 12,730

241,159 15,716
241,159 178,648 13,200 3,230 - 15,716 12,730

96,929 {134,700} (185) 31,687 - 2.275 (2,820}
113,588
{32.378)
{32,378) 113,088 - - - - -
84,553 (20,712} (198) 31,857 - 2,275 {2,829)
339,868 81,027 61,882 2682 25,840 57,782 18,843
339,968 81,027 51,892 262 25,840 57,762 18,843
5 404,521 % 80,315 § 61,697 3 31,959 $ 25,840 $ 80,087 5 16,014
(continued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - (Continued)
Governmental Nonmajor Funds
JUNE 30, 2004

Special Revenue Funds

Nature Conservation
DARE Center LLEBG Reserve
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenue:

Property and other county tax - 5 - 8 - 3§ -
Intergovernmental 7,810 449 334
Charges for services
Use of money and property 15.365 706 184,681
Miscellaneous 1,400 915 75,936
Total Revenue 1,400 16,280 8,518 710,251
Expenditures:
Current cperating:

Public safety and legal services 7,810 118,222

Physical health and social services

County environment and education 43,014

Gavernment services o residents
Capital projects 351,863

Total Expenditures 7.810 - 118,222 394,877
Excess (deficiancy) of revenues over expenditures (6,410) 16,280 (109,706) 315,374
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out}
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Met Change in Fund Balances (6,410) 18,280 {108,708} 315,374
Fund balances-beginning of year 30,351 144,804 188,417 (7.014)
Prior Period Adjustment - - {75,092)
Fund balances-beginning of yvear, as restated 30,351 144 804 113,325 (7,014)
Fund bafances- end of year 23,841 $ 161,084 5 3.619 § 308,380
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Capital Projects

Metz Courthouse Permanent
Building LEC Renaovation Fund Total
$ - $ - $ - 5 - $ 338088
87,412 641,338
62,624
219 215,813
§9.815
- 97,412 - 219 1,357,678
138,232
208,673
95,290
5123
26,433 309,968 945,137
- 26,433 309,066 - 1,393,455
- 70,979 (309,966) 219 (35,777)
38,201 83,127 235,316
{32,376)
38,201 - 83,127 - 202,940
38,201 70,979 {226,839} 218 167,183
(38,201) (71,528) 22,321 31,128 1,178,958
64,447
{38,201} (71,529) 22,321 31,128 1,243,403
$ - $ (550) § (204.518) § 31347 $ 1,410,566

85



COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
Agency Funds

JUNE 30, 2004

County Ag
Recorder/ County Extension County
Auditor Sheriff Education Assessor

ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 326282 % 83,757 % 3,247 93,734
Receivables:

Property Tax 679 1,636

Future Property Tax 150,744 484,847

Accounts 4,921

Assessments

Interest

Due from Gther Governments

Total Assels 331,203 83,757 154,670 585,222

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 31,097

Due to Other Governments 331,203 70.096 154,670 542,688

Trusts Payabie 13,661

Compensated Absences 11,437

Salaries and Benefits Payable

Total Liabilities 3 331,203 % 83,787 $§ 154670 § 585,222

56



City Auto
City Area Special License-Use
Assessor Schools Schools Corporations  Townships Assessments Tax

$§ 276,081 § 900,433 § 33,408 § 8425834 § 5,042 § 75582 § 1,579,234

4,934 195,668 7,178 195,376 1,821
805,014 44,298,530 1,613,493 45,286,587 401,263
578,761
1,086,029 45,394,631 1,654,079 47,334,597 408,128 654,343 1,578,234
63,161
958,800 45,394,631 1,654,079 47,334,597 408,126 654,343 1,579,234
40,928
23,140

$ 1.086,029 $45.394831 $ 1,654,079 $ 47,334,587 $ 408.126 $§ 654,343 $§ 1.579.234

{continued)
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COUNTY OF WOODEURY, IOWA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - (Continued)
Agency Funds

JUNE 30, 2004

EMS Joint Drainage
Training Disaster Bankruptcy Districts
ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 183,591
Receivables; -
Property Tax
Future Property Tax
Accounts 25
Assessments 261,377
Accrued Interest 35
Due from Cther Governments 19,851 120,773
Total Assets 19,851 120,798 - 445,053
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payahle 331 54,762 811
Due to Other Governments 19,520 48,386 444,242
Trusts Payable
Compensated Absences 12,646
Salaries and Benefits Payable 5,004
Total Liabilities b %9,851 $ 120,798 § - § 445,053
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Property Unclaimed Tax Emergency Loan Com Future Tax

Tax Property Condemnation Sale 911 Tax Payment
140 % 3,747 § 8,662 $ 36976 % 13,197 § 552,380
52

11,080

31,102
266
11,272 3,747 8,662 36,976 44,565 - 552,380
95
11,272 3,747 8,662 36,976 44,470 552,380
11,272 % 3,747 & 8,662 % 36,876 § 44,565 § - 3 552380

(continued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - (Continued)
Agency Funds
JUNE 30, 2004

Recorder
DNR Courthouse  Electronic
Licenses Foundation Fees Total
ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 18,485 § 42723 % 9690 $ 5,095,030
Receivables:
Property Tax 407,344
Future Property Tax 94,061,558
Accounts 10 36,058
Assessments 840,138
Accrued Interest 575 926
Due from Other Governments 140,624
Total Assets 19,485 43,308 9,680 100,581,678
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 150,257
Due to Cther Governments 19,485 9,690 100,281,297
Trusts Payable 43,308 56,969
Compensated Absences 65,011
Salaries and Benefits Payable 28.144
Total Liabilities 3 19,485 § 43,308 § 9,690 $ 100,581,678
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Balance Balance
July 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
2003 tions tions 2004
County Auditor
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments g 266,722 $ 7,218,301 $ 7,158,741 $ 326,282
Accounis Receivable 3,197 4,921 3,197 4,921
Total Assets 269,919 7,223 222 7,161,938 331,203
Liabifities
Due to Other Governments 269,919 7,223,222 7,161,938 331,203
Total Liabilities 269,919 7,223222 7,161,938 331,203
County Sheriff
Assels
Cash and Pgoled [nvestments 256,904 1,159,503 1,332,650 83,757
Total Assets 256,504 1,159,503 1,332,650 83,757
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 40,624 857,667 928,195 70,096
Trusts Payable 216,280 201,838 404,455 13,661
Total Liabilities 256,904 1,159,503 1,332,650 83,757
Agricultural Extension Education
Assels
Cash and Pcoled Investments 2,358 150,298 149,410 3,247
Property Tax Receivable 850 679 850 679
Future Property Tax Receivable 148,987 150,744 140,987 150,744
Totai Assets 153,195 301,722 300,247 154,670
Liahilities
Due to Other Governments 153,195 301,722 300,247 154,670
Total Liabilities 153,195 301,722 300,247 154,670
County Assessor
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments 110,669 369,814 381,744 98,735
Property Tax Receivahle 2,169 1,638 2,169 1,636
Future Property Tax Recsivable 361,258 434,847 361,298 484,847
Total Assets 474 136 856,297 745,211 585222
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 95 31,097 95 31,097
Due to Other Governments 463,986 813,763 735,061 542,688
Compensated Absences 10,055 11,437 10,055 11,437
Totai Liabilities 3 474138 3 856,267 & 745 211 3 585,222
(Cantinued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - (Continued)

Agency Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2004
Balance Bailance
July 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
2003 tions tions 2004
City Assessor
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 125,394 3 1,083,360 g 942,673 $ 276,081
Property Tax Receivable 5,320 4,934 5,320 4,934
Future Property Tax Receivable 1,089,758 805,014 1,089,758 805,014
Total Asset 1,220,472 1,903,308 2,037,751 1,086,029
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 32,961 63,161 32,561 53,161
Due to Other Govermnments 1,118,941 1,776,079 1,936,220 958,800
Compensated Absences 43,013 40,928 43,013 43,628
Salaries & Benefils Payable 25557 23,140 25,557 23,140
Totail Liabilities 1,220,472 1,903,308 2,037,751 1,086,029
Schools
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 661,723 43,285,405 43,046,695 900,433
Property Tax Receivable 232,002 195,668 232,002 195,668
Future Property Tax Receivable 43,223,586 44,298,530 43,223,586 44,298,530
Total Assets 44 117,311 87,779,603 86,502,283 45,394 631
Liabilities
Due to Other Gavernments 44 117,311 87,779,603 86,502,283 45,394,631
Total Liabilities 44 117,311 87,779,603 86,502,283 45394 631
Area Schools
Assets
Cash and Pooled Invastments 41,188 1,588,752 1,596,532 33,408
Property Tax Receivable 14,837 7,178 14,837 7,178
Future Property Tax Receivable 1,685,589 1,613,493 1,585,589 1,613,493
Total Assets 1,641,614 3,209,423 3,196,958 1,654,079
Liabifities
Bue to Other Governments 1,641,614 3,208,423 3,196,958 1,654,075
Totai Liabilities 3 1841814 ¢ 3209423 § 3,186,358 5 1,854 0795
{Continued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - (Continued)

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Balance Balance
July 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
2003 tions tions 2004
Corporations
Assets
Cash and Pocled Investments 689,258 43,128,030 42,974 654 842,634
Property Tax Receivable 176,962 195,376 176,962 185,376
Future Property Tax Receivable 43,159,047 46,296,587 43,159,047 46,296,587
Total Assets 44 025,267 89,619,993 86,310,663 47,334 597
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 44,025,267 89,619,993 86,310,663 47,334,597
Total Liabkilities 44,025,267 89,619,993 86,310,663 47,334 597
Townships
Assets
Cash and Poolad investments 4,335 403,514 402,807 5.042
Praoperty Tax Receivable 2,097 1,821 2,097 1,821
Future Property Tax Receivable 402,352 401,263 402,352 401,263
Total Assets 408,784 806,598 807,256 408,126
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 408,784 806,598 807,256 408,126
Total Liabilities 408,784 806,598 807,256 408,126
City Special Assessments
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments 63,097 525,652 513,067 75,582
Assessments Receivable 620,322 578,761 620,322 578,761
Total Assets 683,419 1,104,313 1,133,389 654,343
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 683,415 1,104,313 1,133,389 654,343
Total Liabilities 683,419 1,104,313 1,133,389 654,343
Auto License and Use Tax
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 1,584,767 18,618,517 18,624,050 1,579,234
Total Assets 1,584,767 18,518,517 18,624,050 1,579,234
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 1,584,767 18,618,517 18,624,050 1,579,234
Totat Liabilities 1,684,767 18,618,517 18,624,050 1,579,234

(Cantinued)



COUNTY OF WOODBURY, |IOWA

COMEBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - {Continued)

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004
Balance Balance
July 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
2003 tions tions 2004
EMS Training
Assels
Cash and Pocled Investments 7,235 3 19,753 26,988 -
Due from Other Governments - 19,851 19,851
Total Assets 7,235 39,604 26,988 19,851
Liabilities
Accounts Payable - 331 - 331
Due to Other Governments 7,235 39,273 26,988 19,520
Total Liabilities 7,235 39,604 26,988 19,851
Joint Disaster
Assefs
Cash and Pooled Investments 78,979 556,691 635,670 -
Accounts Receivable 222 25 222 25
Due from Other Governrnents 10,351 120,773 10,351 120,773
Total Assets 89,552 677,489 646,243 120,798
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 6,841 54,762 6,841 54,762
Due to Other Govemnments 64,788 605,077 621,479 48,386
Compensated Absences 13,884 12,648 13,884 12,646
Salaries and Benefits Payable 4,035 5,004 4039 5,004
Total Liabilities 89,552 677,489 646,243 120,798
Bankruptcy Fund
Assels
Cash and Pocled Investments - 1,983 1,983 -
Total Assets - 1,983 1,883 -
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments - 1,883 1,883 -
Taotal Liabiiities - 1,983 1,883 -
Drainage Districts
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments 67,428 404,978 288,815 183,591
Assessments Raceivable 288,466 261,377 288,466 261,377
Accrued interest 129 85 129 85
Total Assets 356,023 656,440 577410 445,053
Liabifities
Accounts Payable - 811 - 811
Due to Other Governments 356,023 665,629 577,410 444,242
Total Liabilities 356,023 5 665,629 577,410 444 242
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COUNTY OF WOCDBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - (Continued)

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Balance Balance
July 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
2003 tions tions 2004
Property Tax
Assetls
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 146 $ 11,420 11,426 140
Property Tax Receivable 63 52 63 52
Future Property Tax Receivable 11,402 11,080 11,402 11,080
Total Assets 11,611 22,552 22,891 11,272
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 11,611 22,552 22,891 11,272
Total Liabilities 11,611 22,552 22,881 11272
Unclaimed Property
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments 3,747 - - 3,747
Total Assets 3,747 - - 3,747
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 3,747 - - 3,747
Total Liabilities 3,747 - - 3,747
Condemnation
Assels
Cash and Pooled investments 8,662 - - 8662
Total Assets §,662 - - g.662
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 8,662 - - 8.662
Total Liabilities 8,662 - - 8,662
Tax Sale
Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 17,855 2,127,925 2,108,804 36,978
Total Assets 17,855 2,127,825 2,108,804 36,976
Liabilifies
Due to Other Covernments 17,855 2,127,525 2,108,804 36,576
otal Liabilities 3 17,855 % 2,127,925 2,108,804 36,976
(Cantinued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - (Continued)
Agency Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Balance Balance
July 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
2003 tions tions 2004
Emergency 911
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investmernits 5 100,861 5 151,527 $ 239,291 3 13,197
Accounts Receivable 30,692 31,102 30,692 31,102
Accrued Interest 287 266 297 266
Total Assets 131,950 162,855 270,280 44 565
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 3,527 95 3,527 95
Due to Other Governments 128,423 182,800 266,753 44 470
Total Liabilities 131,950 182,895 270,280 44 565
Loan Com Tax
Assefs
Cash and Pocled Investments 5,492 5,890 11,382 -
Total Assets 5,492 5,890 11,382 -
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 5,482 5,890 11,382 -
Total Liabiiities 5,492 5,890 11,382 -
Future Tax Payment
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments 497,044 758,744 704,408 552,380
Total Assets 497,044 758,744 704,408 552,380
Liabilities
Due to Other Governments 497,044 759,744 704,408 552,380
Total Liabilities 497 (44 759,744 704,408 552,380
DNR Licenses
Asseis
Cash and Pooled Investments 23,032 150,840 154,387 19,485
Total Assets 23,032 150,840 154,387 19,485
Liabilities ‘
Due to Other Governments 23,032 150,840 154,387 19,485
Total Liabiiities S 23032 § 150,840 $ 154 387 § 19,485
(Cantinued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - (Continued)

Agency Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Balance Balance
July 1, Addi- Deduc- June 30,
2003 tions tions 2004
Courthouse Foundation
Assels
Cash and Pgoled investments $ 38,817 5 5,058 1,253 42,723
Accounts Receivable 10 10
Accrued Interest 575 575 575 575
Total Assets 39,492 5,644 1,828 43,308
Liabilities
Trusts Payable 39,492 5,644 1,828 43,308
Total Liabitities 39,492 5,644 1,828 43,308
Recorder Electronic Fees
Assels
Cash and Poaled Investments - 128,895 119,205 9,650
Total Assets - 128,895 118,205 9,680
Liabilities
Cue to Other Governments - 128,895 119.205 9,650
Total Liabilities - 128,895 119,205 9,680
Total All Agency Funds
Assels
Cash and Pooled Investments 4,655 913 121,865,752 121,426,635 5,095,030
Receivables:
Property Tax 434,300 407,344 434,300 407 344
Future Praperty Tax 89,983,019 94,061,558 89,083,019 94,061,558
Accounts 34,111 36,058 34,111 36,058
Assessments 908,788 840,138 908,788 840,138
Interest 1,001 928 1,001 9286
Due from Other Governments 10,351 140,624 10,351 140,624
Total Assets 06,027,483 217,352,400 212,798,205 100,581,678
Liabilities
Accounis Payable 43,424 150,257 43,424 150,257
Due to Other Governments 95,631,739 216,801,508 212,251,950 100,281,297
Trusts Payable 255,772 207,480 406,283 56,969
Compensated Absences 66,952 65,011 66,852 65,011
Salaries and Benefits Payable 29,596 28,144 29,595 28,144
Total Liabilities $ 86,027,483 $ 217,352,400 $ 212,798,205 $ 100.581.678
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, [OWA

Schedule of Revenues By Source and Expenditures By Function - All Governmental Funds
For the Years Ended June 30, 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001

Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting

2004 2003 2002 2001
Revenue:
Property and other county tax $ 22595491 $ 19,277,192 $ 18,854,815 $ 16,915,077
Interest and penalty on property tax 312,619 307,530 368,495 299,357
Intergovernmental 14,939,630 17,632,104 15,267,422 15,439,337
Licenses and permits 45,399 53,810 28,500 269,731
Charges for services 1,896,565 1,914 669 2,677,802 1,734,386
Use of money and property 772,396 712,463 835,421 1,210,820
Miscellaneous 752,558 644,291 802,639 827,333
Total Revenue $ 41,314,658 § 40,542,059 $ 38,835,004 $ 36,696,141
Expenditures:
Current operating:
Public safety and legal services 5 10106684 § 9,218,087 § 9,271,959 $ 8,817,260
Physical health and social services 3,845,197 3,050,349 3,787,408 3,668,234
Mental health 9,023,345 8,674,850 8,732,958 8,938,930
County environment and education 2,025,344 1,226,648 1,339,882 1,370,069
Roads and transportation 5,812,026 5,303,880 5,531,533 5,746,097
Government services {o residents 1,613,380 1,593,758 1,557,913 1,433,688
Administration 5,048,182 4,985,309 4,433,185 3,868,931
Non-program services 57,770 - - 8,460
Capital projects 2,863,223 5,373,398 3,802,429 1,094,327
Debt service 732,294 567,553 433,600 1,746,603

Total

$ 41127445 § 40,893,840 $ 38,890,865 § 36,692,500
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

General Governmental Expenditures by Source (1)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Public Physical County
Safety and Health and Environment Roads
Legal Social Mental and and Trans-
Fiscal Year Services Services Health Education portation

1994-95 5,601,679 2,862,879 6,970,876 831,653 3,872,430
1995-96 5,827,184 3,310,890 6,655,526 865,673 4,273,135
1986-97 8,045,772 5,945,556 6,322,991 1,047,367 4,227 673
15997-98 6,764,998 5,626,268 7,400,655 1,042,145 4,312,855
1998-99 7,394,607 5,938,909 7,056,629 1,223,125 5,133,078
1999-00 8,182,825 3,581,181 7,777,431 1,208,539 4,856,049
20C0-01 8,817,260 3,668,234 8,938,930 1,370,069 5,746,097
2001-02 9,271,959 3,787,408 8,732,958 1,339,882 5,631,533
2002-03 9,218,087 3,950,349 8,674,850 1,226,648 5,303,890
2003-04 10,106,684 3,845,197 9,023,345 2,025,344 5,812,026

{1 Includes all governmental funds.
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Government

Services Non-
to Administration program Capital Debt
Residents Services Services Projects Services Total
860,441 3,018,480 12,856 3,953,889 1,717,108 29,703,291
838,267 2,901,756 8,660 2,861,830 1,785,495 29,428,216
869,370 2,868,683 36,633 2,360,686 1,806,818 31,561,549
1,190,265 3,012,101 182,325 4,800,813 1,813,768 36,146,183
1,374,611 4,174,611 263,850 3,535,337 1,813,585 37,908,340
1,397,378 4,143,102 48,130 4878177 1,988 527 38,061,320
1,433,589 3,868,931 8,460 1,094,327 1,746,603 36,692,500
1,557 913 4,433,185 - 3,802,429 433,60G0 38,890,865
1,593,758 4,985,309 - 5,373,398 567,553 40,893,840
1,613,380 5,048,182 57,770 2,863,223 732,294 41,127,445
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

General Governmental Revenues by Function (1}

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Use of
Inter- Licenses Charges for ~ Maney and
Fiscal Year Taxes (2}  geovernmental  and Permiis Services Property  Miscellaneous Total
1664-95 17,857,777 8,487,441 11,721 1,328,811 620,557 642,442 28,749,149
1995-96 17,051,464 0,648,368 25,875 1,167,236 898,430 646,048 29,467,422
1986-97 17,630,556 13,833,874 63,679 2,008,709 1,066,725 513,956 35,115,598
1997-98 17,324,843 14,781,537 382,048 1,432,003 1,082,805 533,589 35,507,325
1998-99 17,523,270 14,318,889 221,302 1,686,565 1,075,387 364,359 35,189,783
1998-00 18,522,769 14,171,062 23,670 1,421,490 1,033,334 2,317,919 37,480,244
2000-01 17,214,434 15,439,337 269,731 1,734,386 1,210,920 827,333 36,698,141
2001-02 19,223,310 15,267 422 28,500 2,677,802 835,421 802,639 38,835,094
2002-03 19,584,722 17,832,104 53,810 1,814,669 712,483 644,291 40,542,052
2003-04 22,908,110 14,938,630 45,399 1,896,565 772,396 762,558 41,314,658

{1) Includes ail governmental funds.

(2) Taxes include property, local option sales, and other taxes plus interest and penalties
on delinquent property taxas.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percent Delinguent
Total Current Tax of Levy Tax

Fiscal Year Tax Levy (1)  Collections Collected Collections
1994-95 78,036,214 77,622,622 99.47% 215,689
1995-06 80,110,147 79,709,556 99.50% 383,445
1996-97 79,752,643 79,312,510 99.45% 324,659
1997-98 82,480,515 82,360,878 89.85% 208,634
1998-99 85,044,789 83,083,643 97.689% 164,610
1899-00 88,357,301 88,127,571 99.74% 145,700
2000-01 90,713,645 90,350,691 99.60% 186,750
2001-02 94,440,292 54,173,814 99.71% 46,127
2002-03 96,997,001 95,627,720 98.58% -
2003-04 101,260,365 100,522,671 99.27% 384,504
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(1} Includes all taxing governments within Woodbury County for which Woodbury County
serves as an agent for tax collections.



Total Total

Collections Delinguent Woodbury
Total as Percent Qutstanding as Percent County-Only
Tax of Current Delinguent of Current Property Tax

Collections Levy Taxes Levy Coligctions
77,842,311 99.75% 208,511 0.27% 16,570,797
80,095,041 99.98% 339,832 0.42% 15,969,383
79,637,169 99.86% 238,133 0.30% 16,239,485
82,569,512 100.11% 154,475 0.19% 16,399,643
83,248,253 97.89% 338,480 0.40% 16,470,609
88,273,272 89.90% 143,675 0.16% 16,619,206
90,537,441 99.81% 123,737 0.14% 16,903,369
94,219,941 99.76% 180,465 0.19% 18,852,434
95,627,720 98.58% 549,359 0.57% 19,302,914
100,907,175 99.65% 504,145 0.50% 20,583,477
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Assessed and Taxable Values of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Real Property Utilities

Taxable Assessed Taxable Assessed

Fiscal Year Value Value {1) Value Value (1)
1994-95 1,829,430,503  2,.412,675,722 376,425,107 386,593,796
1995-96 1,830,302,717  2,285,613,959 439,136,794 451,744,994
1996-97 1,851,5643,684  2,557,472,817 414,398,870 414,659,789
1997-98 1,840,960,907  2,603,125,311 475,909,793 478,909,793
1998-99 2,019,963,653  3,032,444.615 493,745,979 493,831,911
1993-00 2,137,113,885  3,082,888,376 452,161,145 452,161,145
2000-01 2,225,609,691 3,271,523,515 406,766,276 414,972,768
2001-02 2,347,104,650  3,653,826,501 414,355,058 424,318,776
2002-03 2,361,480,488  3,568,462,321 412,418,813 412,418,813
2003-04 2,350,482,046  3,965,287,729 419,533,795 419,598,634

(1) Assessed value equals estimated actual value.
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Ratio of Tax Increment
Total Taxable to Financing

Taxable Assessed Assessed District

Value Value (1) Value Values
2,205,915,610 2,799,271,518 78.8% 105,223,078
2,269,439,511 2,747,358,953 82.6% 128,739,511
2,265,940,554 2,972,132,606 76.2% 149,079,954
2,317,870,700 3,080,035,104 75.3% 188,134,788
2,613,709,632 3,526,276,526 71.3% 275,837,804
2,589,275,130 3,535,049,521 73.2% 262,828,414
2,632,375,967 3,686,496,283 71.4% 271,311,462
2,761,459,708 4.078,145,277 67.7% 284,542 373
2,773,893,311 3,980,881,134 69.7% 299,670,045
4,384,886,363 63.2% 263,801,935

2,770,015,841
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COUNTY OF WOORBURY, IOWA

Froperty Tax Rates per $1,000 Taxable Vaiuation-
All Direct and Overfapping Governments

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Cities
Sioux City
Sergeant Lawten- Correction-
Sioux City Bluff Bronson Anton Bronson ville Cushing
2003-04
City 17.78712 17.78712 17.78712 2.51489 9.85813 7.79602 8.12717
Area 12 -WIT 0.57204 0.57204 0.587204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204
Schaool District 17.01647 12.50354 14.75085 13.88487 14.75085 15.68581 15.68581
State 0.004C0 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400
Ag Extension 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442
Assessor (1) 0.43134 0.43134 0.43134 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.563651
County 7.65883 7.65883 7.65983 7.85083 7.65883 7.65883 7.65983
Tofal Levy 43.52522 39.01229 41.25960 25.22658 33.43678 32.31163 33.63978
Ratio of Waodbury
Catinty to Totals 17.599% 19.634% 18.565% 30.364% 22.908% 23.708% 22.770%
2002-03
City 18.00121 16.00121 16.00121 5.04262 7.83618 6.56082 7.78231
Area 12 - WIT 0.84432 0.94432 0.94432 ¢.94432 0.94432 0.94432 0.94432
School District 1577004 1287481  13.14890  12.00036  13.14890C 13.92765 13.82785
State 0.c0400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400
Ag Extension 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407
Assessor (1) 0.52006 0.52006 0.52008 0.39285 0.39285 0.39285 0.39285
County 8.92037 6.92037 6.92037 6.92037 £.92037 6.92037 6.92037
Total Levy 40.21407  37.31884  37.58203 2536759 29.30068 28.80418  30.02557
Ratio of Wocdbury
County to Totals 17.208% 18.544% 18.409% 27.280% 23.618% 24.0268%  23.048%
2001-02
City 1440683  14.40683  14.40883 5.24712 7.52391 6.89671 8.10000
Area 12 - WIT G.82121 0.62121 0.82121 0.62121 0.62121 D.862121 G.62121
School District 14.43527 1286012  14.18802  10.72085 1418902 1450437  14.59437
State 0.C0500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 (.00800 0.00500
Ag Extension 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432
Assaessor (1) 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003
County 5.86754 5.86754 6.86754 5.86754 5.86754 6.86754 5.86754
Total Levy 36.83920 3526505 36593095  23.96607 28.711053 29.48018  30.69247
Ratio of Woodbury
County to Totals 18.642% 19.474% 18.767% 28.855% 23.114% 23.288% 22.375%
2000-01:
City 1440724 1440724 1440724 5.458793 8.1G000 7.81323 8.10000
Area 12-WIT 0.60985 0.60985 0.60885 0.60985 0.60985 0.60985 0.80985
School District t4.89557  13.85137  14.92109  10.17437  14.9210¢  14.28511  14.28511
State 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00800 0.0050C
Ag Extension 0.05698 0.05698 0.05698 0.05683 0.05688 0.05698 0.05698
Assessor (1) 0.53943 0.53943 0.530843 0.60881 0.60881 0.60881 0.60891
County 5.31704 6.31704 6.31704 5.31704 §.317C04 6.31704 6.31704
Total Levy 38.63111 35.78691 36.85663 23.23094 30.61887 29.68612  20,98289
Ratio of Woodbury
County ta Totals 17.245% 17.852% 17.138% 27.192% 20.631% 21.272% 21.080%
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Cities

Sergeant
Danbury Hornick Lawlon Moville Oto Pierson Salix Bluff Sloan Smithland
5.63206 7.89182 9.22885 8.10000 8.10000  15.84826 8.08927  11.09292 8.09988 8.09837
0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 0.57204 ¢.57204 0.567204
13.55230 1548845 1475085 14.87324  13.88487 1581554 1548845 1250384 1548845 1548845
(0.0040G .004G0 0.00400 ($.00400 0.06400 0.00400 0.00400 G.00400 0.00400 0.00400
0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442 0.05442
0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651 0.53651
7.65983 7.65983 7.65983 7.65983 7.65983 7.65983 7.65983 7.65983 7.65683 7.85883
28.01116  32.30vC7 3280750  31.80004  30.81167  40.49060 32.41452 3242326 3241513 3241462
27.346% 23.709% 23.348% 24.087% 24.860% 18.918% 23.631% 23.624% 23.630% 23.631%
5.61288 7.62691 7.83103 §.71278 777795 14.66528 7.79675 3.09846 7.75284 7.32688
0.84432 0.94432 0.94432 0.94432 0.94432 0.94432 0.54432 0.84432 0.84432 0.94432
1150809  12.85035  13.1480C  13.38697 12.00936 13.12967 12.85035  12.87481  12.85035  12.85025
0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.00400 0.004C0 (.00400 0.00400 0.00400 (.00400 0.00400
0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407 0.05407
0.39285 0.38285 0.38285 0.3¢285 0.39285 0.39285 0.36285 0.39285 0.39285 0.30285
6.92037 8.92037 6.92037 6.92037 6.92037 6.92037 6.92037 8.92037 5.92087 5.92037
25.43758  28.79587 2929554 3141836 28.10292  36.11056 28.06271  30.18688 28.01880  28.49284
27.205% 24.033% 23.623% 22.027% 24.625% 19.164% 23.854% 22.925% 23.930% 24.288%
5.10809 5.74718 510000 10.15526 8.10000  14.50504 8.10000 7.84889 8.09988 8.37534
0.62121 0.82121 0.82121 0.82121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121 0.62121
10.11545  12.4078C  14.18902  13.63426 1072085 13.34784  12.4078C  12.86012 12.40780  12.4Q780
0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00800 0.00500 0.00500 C.00500
0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432 0.05432
0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.450G3 0.45003 0.450C03 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003 0.45003
6.86754 5.86754 6.86754 6.86754 6.86754 5.86754 6.86754 6.85754 5.86754 5.86754
23.21964 2718308  30.28712 3178762 26.81895  35.85098 2550590 28.80711 28.50578 26.78124
20.576% 25.202% 22.875% 21.604% 25.607% 19.156% 24.082% 23.840% 24.092% 25.643%
4.94543 8.81096 8.10000 8.05986 8,10000 8.55846 8.09302 7.44890 8.01419 §.74988
0.60885 0.80985 (.60885 0.80985 0.60985 0.60985 0.60985 0.6C985 0.80885 0.80885
1020882  11.35249  14.82109 1370285  10.17437  12.28324  11.35248  13.85137  11.35249  11.35249
0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 £.00500 0.00500
0.05698 0.06698 0.05698 0.05688 0.05898 0.05658 .05868 0.05698 0.05698 0.05608
0.60891 0.60891 0.60881 0.608%1 0.60891 0.60881 0.50801 0.60891 0.50881 0.60891
£6.31704 53.31704 8.31704 6.31704 6.31704 8.31704 5.31704 6.31704 5.31704 5.31704
2275213  25.76123 30.61887 2540048 2587215 2043943 27.04329 2388805 26596448 2570013
27.785% 24.621% 20.831% 21.486% 24.416% 21.458% 23.358% 21.860% 23.427% 24.580%
{continued)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

Property Tax Rates per $1,000 Taxable Valuation-

All Direct and Overlapping Governments {Continued)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Cities
Sioux City
Sergeant Lawion- Correction-
Sioux City Bluff Bronson Anton Bronson ville Cushing
1969-00:
City 13.94830 13.84690 13.94690 5.48506 8.10000 7.86480 8,10000
Area 12 - WIT 0.55851 0.55851 0.55951 0.55951 0.55951 0.55951 0.56951
Schoaol District 13.64808 12.76388 1463005 9.29959 14.63805 13.85076 13.95076
State 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 C.00500 0.00500 ¢.00500 (.00500
Ag Extension 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.058C7 0.05807 0.05807
Assessor (1} 0.52601 0.52801 0.52601 0.42119 0.42118 0.42119 0.42118
County 5.27007 6.27007 6.27007 8.27007 6.27007 6.27007 6.27007
Total Lavy 35.01365 34.12844  36.00461 2208849  30.05289 29.12040 29.36460
Ratio of Woadbury
County to Totals 17.908% 18.371% 17.415% 28.373% 20.863% 21.525% 21.352%
1998-99:
City 13.98384  13.98334  13.98384 7.69809 8.10000 7.88715 8.10000
Area 12 - WIT 0.59515 0.59515 0.59515 0.59515 0.59515 0.58515 0.59515
School District 14.30640 13.08248 15.24642 12.87608 15.24642 12.65826 12.65826
State 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500
Ag Extension 0.05982 (.05982 0.05982 0.05882 0.05982 0.05882 0.05982
Assessor (1) 0.46362 0.46362 0.46362 0.48578 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579
County 6.11533 6.11533 8.11533 6.11533 6.11533 6.11533 8.11533
Total Levy 38.52916  34.30524 3848918  27.83526  30.60751  27.80650 2B.01835
Ratio of Woodbury
County to Totals 17.212% 17.826% 16.768%  21.970% 19.980% 21.992%  21.825%
1897-98:
City 1530439 1530439  15.30439 8.73463 810000 8.96952 8.10000
Area 12 -WIT 0.60756 0.60796 0.60796 0.50796 0.60796 0.60798 0.80796
School District 15.21554 12.32057 15.41696 12.67197 16.41606 11.81840 11.81840
State 0.00500 0.0G500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500
Ag Extension 0.06487 0.06487 0.06487 0.06487 0.068487 0.06487 0.06487
Assessor (1) 0.41087 0.41087 0.41087 0.51280 0.51260 0.51260 0.51260
County 6,64317 5.64317 6.64317 6.64317 6.64317 6.64317 6.64317
Total Levy 3825180 3535883 3845322 2924020 31.35056 2862162 27.75200
Ratio of Waoadbury
County to Totals 17.367% 18.780% 17.276% 22.719% 21.160% 23.210%  23.938%
1996-97:
City 14.97058 14.87059 1497059 8.73670 8.10000 9.42186 8.10000
Area 12 -WIT 0.53266 0.53266 0.53268 0.53266 0.53266 0.53266 D.53266
School District 1460141  13.02652  13.68140  13.41260 13.88140 11.52222  11.52222
Stata 0.G0500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500
Ag Extension 0.08820 0.06620 0.068620 0.08620 0.06620 0.06620 0.066820
Assessor (1) 0.29212 0.28212 0.26212 0.28567 G.28567 0.28567 0.28587
County 5.82155 5.82155 6.82155 8.82155 5.82155 6.82155 8.82185
Totat Levy 37.28953 35714684  36.36052  29.86038 20409248 28.685516  27.33330
Ratio of Woodbury
County to Totals 18.283% 19.100% 18.756% 22.845% 23.130% 23.806% 24.057%
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Cities

Sergeant
Danbury Hornick Lawton Maoville Oto Piersen Salix Bluff Sloan Smithland
5.03341 6.08211 8.10000 8.10001 8.10000 9.5584¢8 8.09149 7.44522 7.80272 5.74631
0.55551 0.55851 0.55851 0.55951 0.55951 0.55851 0.55951 0.55851 0.55951 0.55951
10.04426 10.82237 1463905 13.44653 9.29959 12.72397 10.82237 12.76388 10.82257 10.82237
0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.005C0 0.00500 0.00500 £.00500 0.03500
0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807 6.05807 0.05807 0.05807 0.05807
0.42119 0.42119 0.42119 0.42119 0.42119 0.42119 042119 0.42118 0.4211% 0.42119
5,27007 6.270C07 8.27007 6.27007 3.27007 6.27007 6.27007 6.27C07 6.27007 8.27007
22.39181 2421832 30.05289 28.86338 24.71343 29.569630 28.22770 27.52294 2593893  24.88252
28.002% 25.890% 20.863% 21.723% 25.371% 21.185% 23.908% 22.781% 24.172%  25.198%
5.21081 6.29456 8.100C0 7.79999 8.1000¢ 9.36209 7.524%0 7.44522 7.79999 8.75863
0.59515 G.58515 0.59515 0.59515 0.595158 0.58515 0.59515 0.59515 0.58515 0.59515
10.33976  10.91035 1524642  14.25187 12.87608  13.30233 1091035  13.08248 1091035  10.81035
0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.005G0 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.005C0
0.05582 0.053882 0.05882 0.05882 0.05982 0.05982 0.05882 0.05882 (.05882 0.05982
0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.48579 0.4857%
611533 5.11533 6.11533 6.11533 8.11533 6.11533 8.11533 6.11533 6.11533 6.11533
22.81176 24.46600 30.60751 29.31305 28.23717  29.92551 26.08634 27.78879 2597143 24.93007
26.808% 24.995% 19.880% 20.862% 21.657% 20.435% 23.434% 22.006% 23.546% 24.530%
5.35572 5.84687 8.09993 7.800C0 8.10000 9.21183 8.08707 6.84522 5.589498 6.7585%
0.60796 0.80796 0.60756 0.80796 0.60796 0.60796 0.607986 0.60786 0.60796 0.60796
10.07731 11.64754 15.41698 14.27538 12.67197 12.96185 11.64754 12.32057 11.64754 11.64754
G.00500 (0.00500 0.00500 0.0050C 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 £.00500
0.06437 0.06487 0.06487 0.06487 0.06487 0.08437 0.06487 0.06487 0.Co487 0.D6487
0.512860 0.51280 0.51260 0.51260 0.51260 0.512860 0.51280 0.51260 0.51260 0.51280
5.64317 5.64317 6.84317 8.64317 6.64317 68.84317 8.64317 6.64317 8.64317 6.64317
23.26663 25.32801 31.35049 29.912¢8 28.60857 30.00738 27.57821 26.9983S 25.08112 26.23873
28.552% 26.229% 21.190% 22.208% 23.223% 22.138%  24.088% 24.605% 22.844% 25.317%
5.64244 6.56995 8.09993 7.80001% 8.10000 9.48642 7.96126 6.84522 9.43997 8.758688
0.53266 0.53266 0.53266 0.53286 0.53266 0.53266 0.53266 0.53266 0.53266 0.53286
9.81064 11.58985 13.88140 14.27323 13.41260 14.71678 11.58985 13.02652 11.58885 11.58985
0.00500 0.G0500 0.00500 0.005C0 G.00500 0.005C0 0.00500 0.00500 G.00500 0.00500
0.06620 0.06620 0.08620 0.06620 0.06820 0.06620 0.0662C 0.06620 0.06620 0.08620
0.28567 0.28567 0.28567 0.28567 0.28867 0.28567 0.28567 0.28567 0.28567 0.28567
5.82155 6.82155 6.82155 6.82155 6.82155 5.82155 5.82155 8.82155 65.82155 6.82155
23.18418 25.87088 285.45241 20.78432  20.22368 31.91428  27.26219 27.68282  28.80090 26.05961
29.449% 26.368% 23.130% 22.903% 23.343% 21.375% 25.022% 24.731% 23.685% 26.177%
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Property Tax Rates per $1,000 Taxable Valuation-

All Direct and Overlapping Governments {Continued)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Cities
Sicux City
Sergeant Lawton- Correction-
Sioux City Biuff Bronsaon Anton Bronson ville Cushing
1995-96:
City 15.02389  15.02389  15.02389 8.98581 8.10000 9.70870 8.10000
Area 12 - WIT 0.53795 0.53795 0.53795 0.53795 0.53795 0.53795 0.53785
School Bistrict 16.73017  12.62220 12.06470 1414865 1208470 12.03661 12.03661
State 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500
Ag Extension 0.06610 0.06610 0.06610 0.06610 0.068610 3.08610 0.06610
Assessor (1) 0.30328 0.30328 0.30328 0.268735 0.26735 0.26735 0.26735
County 5.86079 6.86079 5.88079 8.86079 6.86079 6.86079 6.86079
Total Levy 3952718 3541621  34.86171  30.85165 2790188 2048260  27.57380
Ratio of Woodbury
County to Totals 17.357% 19.370% 16.680% 22.238% 24.588% 23.271% 24.614%
1994-95:
City 15.10757  15.10757  15.10757 8.96638 8.08001 10.05101 8.06495
Area 12 - WIT 0.57017 0.57017 0.57017 0.57017 0.57017 0.57017 057017
School District 16.32694  12.03183 1261118 1473078 1261118 1234076 12.34075
State 0.00500 0.06500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500
Ag Extension 0.06800 0.08800 0.08800 0.08800 0.08800 0.08800 0.08800
Assessor (1) 0.32258 0.32258 0.32258 0.23759 0.23759 0.23759 0.23759
County 7.368208 7.36206 7.36206 7.36206 7.36206 7.36208 7.36206
Total Levy 3076232 3546721 3604656  31.93998  28.93401  30.63459  28.64853
Ratio of Woodbury
County to Totals 18.515% 20.757% 20.424% 23.050% 25.444% 24.032% 25.688%

(1) Gity assessor only for Sioux City while rest of Cities are by the County Assessor.

All tax rates are expressed in dollars per thousand of taxable valuas

- Included in this report are all of the incorporated cities and towns within Woodbury County.

Mot shown are the Rural Basic Fund of the County and the following taxing bodies over and above the cities listed:

a. 25 townships
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Cities

Sergeant
Danbury Harnick Lawton Moville Oto Pierson Salix Bluff Sloan Smithland
5.48011 6.54407 8.10000 7.16892 8.10000  10.89266 7.16260 6.05986 7.49244 6.75605
0.53795 0.53795 0.53785 0.53795 0.53795 0.53795 0.53795 0.53795 0.53795 0.53795
10.51552  12.93603  12.08470 1545188  14.14865  15.21961 1203603  12.62220 1293603  12.93603
0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.005600 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 G.00500
0.06610 0.06610 0.06610 0.06510 0.08810 0.06610 0.06610 0.06610 0.06610 0.06610
0.26735 0.26735 0.28735 0.26735 0.26735 0.28735 0.26735 D.26735 0.26735 0.26735
6.86079 8.86079 6.86079 5.86079 6.86079 5.86079 6.86079 6.86079 6.85078 5.88079
2373282 2721729 27.90189  30.35789  20.98584  33.64946 27.83582 26.41925 2816566  27.42027
28.808% 25.207% 24.589% 22.600% 22.880% 20.389% 24.647% 25.969%  24.358%  25.013%
10.36529 5.04422 7.88385 7.14797 7.94632 9.04178 6.51978 7.14802 6.08473 6.75584
0.57017 0.57017 057017 0.57017 057017 0.57017 0.57017 0.57017 0.57017 0.57017
550522 1280856 1261118 1570248 1473078  14.92427 1200856 12.03183 12.90856  12.50856
0.005C0 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500 0.00300 0.00500 0.00500 0.00500
0.08300 0.06800 0.06800 0.08800 0.06800 0.06800 0.068G0 0.06800 0.06800 0.06800
0.23759 0.23759 0.23759 0.23759 0.23759 0.23759 0.23759 0.23759 0.23759 0.23759
7.36206 7.36208 7.36206 7.36206 7.362086 7.36206 7.36206 7.36206 7.36208 7.36206
2411333 27.09560  28.73785  31.09327  30.92292  32.20887 28.07116  27.42267 27.23671  27.90722
30.531% 27.171% 25.618% 23.677% 23.808% 22.857% 26.226% 26.847%  27.031% 26.380%
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

Ratio of Qutstanding General Obligation Bonded Debt
to Assessed Values and Debt per Capita

L.ast Ten Fiscal Years

General
Obligation Percent
Bonded Debt Debt to Debt
Outstanding Assessed Assessed Estimated Per
Fiscal Year {1) Vaiues Value Population Capita

1994-95 9,510,388 2,799,271,518 0.34% 101,587 93.62
19553-96 8,099,985 2,747,358,953 0.28% 102,240 79.23
1986-97 6,617,262 2,872,132,606 0.22% 102,580 64.51
1997-98 5,127,000 3,080,035,104 0.17% 102,580 49.98
1998-99 4,276,028 3,5626,276,526 0.12% 101,672 42.08
1998-00 2,896,717 3,535,049,521 0.08% 101,672 28.49
2000-01 1,275,397 3,686,496,283 0.03% 103,877 12.28
2001-02 1,700,259 4,078,145,277 0.04% 103,877 16.37
2002-03 2,026,116 3,987,300,079 0.05% 103,877 19.50
2003-04 1,372,768 4,648,688,298 0.03% 103,877 13.22

The computation of the County's legal margin as of June 20, 2004, is as follows:

Assessed Valuation $4.648 688,298

Debt fimit:
5% of assessed valuation {lowa statutory limitation) § 232,434,415

Total amount of debt applicable to debt margin 1,372,766
Legal debt margin $ 231,061,649

(1) The fund balance of the debt service fund has been excluded due to the immateriality of such balances.

{2) Includes tax increment values of § 265,801,835.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

June 30, 2004

Applicable to Woodbury County

Amount Average
of Debt Percent Amount
Woodbury County 2,172,760 100.00% § 2,172,760
Cities:
Sergeant Bluff 5,422,827 106.00% 5,422,827
Sioux City 92,855,494 100.00% 92,855,494
Schoaols:
River Valley 5,525,000 44 58% 2,463,045
Lawton-Bronson 199,245 99.00% 197,253
Sergeant Bluff - Luton 8,535,000 100.00% 8,535,000
Sioux City 30,445,341 98.80% 30,079,997
Westwood 4,430,000 87.66% 3,883,338
Woodbury Centrai 1,215,000 100.00% 1,215,000
Total direct and overlapping debt 150,800,667 S 146,824,713
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures to
Total General Governmental Expenditures
l.ast Ten Fiscal Years

Percent of
General Debt
Service
Expendiiures to
Total Total Total

Debt Service  Governmental  Governmental

riscal Year Principal Interest Expenditures  Expenditures Expenditures
1994-55 1,163,243 574,343 1,737,586 29,703,291 5.85%
1995-96 1,410,402 380,116 1,790,518 29,428,216 6.08%
1956-97 1,482,723 329,118 1,811,841 31,561,549 5.74%
1997-98 1,540,234 273,533 1,813,767 36,146,193 5.02%
1988-99 1,601,000 212,585 1,813,585 37,908,340 4.78%
1989-00 1,801,000 187,527 1,988,527 38,061,320 5.22%
2000-01 1,621,320 125,283 1,746,603 36,204,464 4.82%
2001-02 375,136 58,464 433,600 38,890,865 1.11%
2002-03 474,143 93,410 567,553 40,893,840 1.39%
2003-04 653,350 78,944 732,294 41,127,445 1.78%
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Median
Household Median Unemployment Schoal
Fiscal Year Population ncoms Age Rate Enrollment
1994-95 101,587 27,733 3417 2.3% 22,602
1995-96 102,240 28,739 34.50 2.4% 22,633
1996-97 102,580 29,326 34.84 2.5% 21,802
1897-G8 102,580 31,198 35.19 2.6% 23,320
1698-99 101,672 32,498 35.51 2.7% 23,262
1989-00 101,437 34,208 36.02 2.8% 23,144
2000-01 103,877 35,266 34.20 2.9% 23,175
2001-02 103,877 36,357 34.20 3.1% 23,210
2002-03 103,331 37,482 36.75 3.7% 22,978
2003-04 103,877 36,456 35.40 5.4% 23,315
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
New Construction and Property Value
Last Ten Fiscal Years

June 30, 2004

New Construction (1)

Fiscal Year Commercial Residential Industrial Agriculiural Total
1984-95 29,255 19,346 2,418 21 51,040
1955-06 38,297 16,935 2,202 20 57,454
1968-97 22,619 33,444 13,267 57 69,387
1997-98 22,832 32,927 1,950 30 57,735
1998-99 22,758 20,023 2,659 17 45,457
1999-00 54,786 34,588 6,676 80 96,130
2000-01 38,716 44,423 5,125 688 88,952
2001-02 38,006 34,189 6,182 794 79,171
2002-03 38,458 39,428 5,124 3,808 86,821
2003-04 60,669 36,579 4,133 1 101,382

(1) Doilars in thousands.
(2) Property value is the assessed value before any exemptions or state rollbacks. Personal

property assessed as real and utilities are not included in the figures above. The dollars
not included amount to $433,075,286. Does not include Tax [ncrement values.
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Property Value {2)

Commercial Residential Industrial Agricultural Total
502,450,662 1,308,037,209 86,337,997 276,887,964  2,173,713,832
527,104,257 1,505,081,578 87,921,727 277,064,422  2,397,171,984
540,667,112 1,567,044,949 891,125,243 277,416,754 2,476,254 058
551,685,234 1,829,632,287 109,038,780 276,827,242  2,767,183,553
694,945,535 1,881,938,146 100,470,561 307,855,077 2,985,209,319
528,909,713  2,143,407,079 81,685,456 306,935,746  3,060,837,994
602,044,592  2,202,172,558 88,927,098 328,130,742 3,221,274,990
724,050,401 2,481,790,977 110,452,190 328,776,423  3,645,068,991
697,563,470  2,423,218,138 110,452,180 328,472,013  3,559,705,811
767,689,964  2,506,242,086 129,117,627 256,380,140  3,659,429,827

a7



COUNTY OF WOOCDBURY, IOWA
Ten Principal Taxpayers
June 30, 2004

Percentage

of Total

Taxable Taxable

Taxpayer Value Value
MidAmerican Energy $ 262,730,049 9.47%
SDG Macerich Properties 55,059,100 1.98%
interstate Power 27,712,818 1.00%
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business 22,115,000 0.80%
Klinger Properties 12,900,100 0.47%
Qwest Telephone 12,899,769 0.47%
ILLInc. 12,189,700 0.44%
Terra Chemical International 11,330,070 0.41%
K-F Real Estate Co. 10,623,300 0.38%
Menards 9,447,700 0.34%
Total $ 438,977,606 15.76%
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Salaries and Surety Bonds of Principal Officials
June 30, 2004

2003-04
Annual Bonded
Elected Official Salary Amount (2)

County Auditor/Recorder (1) 3 62,317 3 20,000
County Attorney 90,4869 20,000
Sheriff 71,929 50,000
Treasurer 58,859 50,000
Board of Supervisors 27,018 20,000
Chairman, Board of Supervisors 32,167 20,000

(1) Office of Recorder was combined with the County Auditor's
office by Special Election held on November 3, 1892.

(2) All officials and employees of Woodhury County are covered
by a blanket bond in the amount of $250,000.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

Schedule of Insurance in Force

June 30, 2004

Insurance Type of Amaount of

Company Insurance Insured Coverage
Travelers Deluxe Property Woodbury County 3 101,507,674
Commercial Inland 3 8,461,633

Marine Coverage

Travelers Builders Risk Woodbury County $ 2,500,000
The Cincinnati Ins. Co. Boilers & Machinery Woodbury County 5 2,500,000
Hartford Public Employee Dishonesty Woodbury County $ 250,000
Fargery & Alteration Woodbury County S 50,000
Elected Official Band County Attorney 5 20,000.00
Elected Official Bond County Auditor 3 20,000.00
Eiected Official Band B.0.S. Member $ 20,000.00
Elected Official Bond B.0.S. Member $ 20,000.00
Elected Official Bond B.C.S. Member g 20,000.00
Elected Official Bond B.C.8. Member 5 20,000.00
Elected Official Bond B.C.5. Member 5 20,600.00
Elected Official Bond County Sheriff 5 50,000.00
Elected Offictal Bond County Treasurer $ 50,000.00
Hartford Bonded Emplayee Dishonesty 21 Township Clerks & 10,000.00
Forgery & Alteration 23 Township Clerks  § 2,000.00
Genesis Public Entity Liab. Excess Ins. Waoochury County 5 9,700,000
$ 19,400,000
Public Officials Liab, Excess Ins. Woodbury County 3 9,700,000

Travelers Specific Excess Work Comp Woodbury County Unlimited

Each Accident

Employers Liability in Excess
of Self-Ingured Retention

100

$1,000,000 each

areidant. each
accigant, eacn

employee disease



Policy Expiration
Deductible Number Date Premium
25,000 P-830-434X6597-TIL-04 07/61/2005 § 77,554
one occurrence
35,000 P-630-434X6597-TIL-04 07/01/2005 b 2,000
$10,000 BEP2663858 07/01/2005 $ 3,807
$25.000 91BPEAEGTYG2 07/01/2005 $ 3,082
N/A 91BPEAEGT62 07/01/2005 Inc w/above
N/A 91BSBAE9505 06/30/2005 3 100
N/A 91BSBAJ7232 12/31/2005 3 100
N/A 91BSBAJ7193 12/31/2005 3 100
N/A 91BSBAJ7199 01/01/2005 3 100
N/A SMBSBAESS40 06/30/2005 5 100
N/A 91BSBAES544 06/30/2005 3 100
N/A 91BSBAES547 06/30/2005 3 100
N/A 91BSBAEGS522 06/30/2005 & 250
N/A 91BSBAES9537 06/30/2005 $ 350
$500 HA-91PEBGR-64G7 06/30/2005 5 629
N/A {Premium paid by townships)
$300,000 YXB300671E 07/01/2005 $ 224,998
Qccurrence
$300,000 Each 07/01/2005 % 19,652
Wrongful Act
Combined BKUB7320A898-8-04 07/01/2003 3 460,503
$ 300,000

accident, each

adl.Ltis 1L gl

employee disease

101



COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IDWA
Miscellaneous Statistics
June 30, 2004

Date of incorporation:

Farm of government: 5M
Area:

Median age of population:

Miies of roads and streets:
Interstate highways
State highways
County roads
City streets

Total Miles

Acres of industrial lands
Farming acres
Number of farms

County employees:
Board members
Elected officials
Full and part-time

Schoois within the county:
Public Schools:
Elementary
Junior high
Senior high

Nanpublic schools:
K-8
High schools

Higher education:
Colleges
Vocational schaols

Total students:
Public schools
Nonpublic schools
Higher education

Total

January 15, 1851
ember County Beoard
872.66 Square Miles

35.51
25
142

1,320
483

1,970

1,918
488,150

1,800

418

28
10
10

18,658
2,329
2,188

23,175

Recreation:
Parks:
County Parks
Number of acres
City Parks
Number of acres

Gaolf Courses:
Private
Puhlic
Municipal

Snowmobile trails, total miles

State wildlife preserve open to public
hunting and fishing

Number of lakes

Number of boat launches
MNumber of beaches

Number of swimming pools
Number of basebail diamands

Public Safety:
County sheriff department
City police departments
Fire departments:
Fulitime
Volunteer
Rescue squads

Elections:
Last general election;
Registered voters
Votes cast
Percent

Last municipal election
Registered voters

Vimtan roaot
VULGD Ldol

Percent

Buiiding permits:
Issued in the year ended June 30, 2004
Value of permits issued

102

21
3,548
68
1,250

it |

4,041

NGk nw

60,045
38,156
64.0%

45,760

An 440
(R o 3=

22.8%

781
$50,476,588



COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Pass-through

Federal Grantor's
Federai Granior CFDA ldentifying Federal
Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Bepartment of Agriculture:
Passed through the Woodbury County Soil and Water
Conservation District:
Watershed Protection and Flood Prevention 10.804 69-6114-3-17 710,808
Passed through the fowa Oepartment of Human Services:
Food Stamps 10.561 £3,308
Passed through the lowa Department of Natural Resources:
Soil and Water Conservation 10.802 03-6-F 82,374
856,490
U.S. Department of Interior
Direct:
North American Wetlands Conservation Fund 15.623 98210-0-G897 28,491
28,491
U.S. Department of Justice:
Direct:
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 18.606 55,322
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 16.592 2001-LB-VX-3626 94,055
Passed through the Govemnor's Office of Drug Control
Policy:
Community Prosecution and Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.602 03-NDQ3 48,0286
Passed through the Governor's Alliance on Substance Abuse:
Edward Byrne Memorial State and Local L.aw Enforcement
Assistance Formula Grant 16.579 03A-0209 104,449
Passed through the Criminal and Juvenile Justice Planning
Youth Development 16.523 208-D 12,643
16.523 CJJP-04.54-003 42,222
Passed through the iowa Homeland Security and
Emergency Management Division:
State Homeland Security Grant Program i 16.007 ODRP-2002-088 1,000
State Homeland Security Grant Program | CDP-2003-088 39,226
State Homeland Security Grant Program I ObP-2003-088 17,190
412,133
U.S. Department of Transportation,
National Highway Safety Administration:
Passed through the lowa Cept of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 BROS-CO97-(50)--84-97 145,864
BROS-C097-(57)--8J-97 313,195
BROS-CO97-(58)--8J-97 173,158
BRCS-C0O57-(59)--8J-97 72,354
BRCS-COg7-(61)--8J-97 258,526
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2004

Pass-through

Federal Grantor's
Federal Grantor CFDA ldentifying Federal
Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Passed through lowa Department of Public Safety-
Governor's Traffic Safety Civision:
State and Community Highway Safety 20.800 PAPO3-02-TASK 27 2477
PAPO4-02TASKID 10,561
975,845
U.S. Institute of Museum and Library Services
Direct:
General Operating Support 45301 1G-00-02-0323-02 20,266
20,266
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed through the lowa Department of Human Services:
Soclai Services Block Grant 93.667 510,159
28E-Pre FIP Diversion Program 93.558 DEA-02-021 22,936
Title X{X and De-Linking 93.778 82,807
SSBG 93.867 54,256
TANF 93.558 82,244
IV-E Foster Care 93.658 17,557
Refuge 83 566 268
IV-E Adoption 93.659 10,024
Child Care Development Fund 83.596 15,195
Passed through the lowa Department of Public Health:
Systems Development 93.003 5884EM91 10,101
825,847
Federal Emergency Management Agency:
Diract:
Interoperable Communication Equipment 97.055 EMW-2003-GR-0408 208,200
Passed through lowa Disaster Serviges Division;
Community Emergency Response Training 97.054 EMK-2003-GR-2535 3,103
Emergency Management Performance Grants g7.042 32,076
State ang Local All Hazards Emergency Operations
Planning 97.051 17,140
Citizens Carp 97.053 5,200
266,715

Total expendiiure of federai awards
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CASH BASIS)

Year Ended Juna 30, 2004

Federal CFDA Pass-through Grantor's Federal
Federal Grantor Number Indentifying Number Expenditures
Component Unit
U.S. Department of Agricuiture
Passed through the lowa Department of Health:
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for
Women, Infants, and Children 10.557 5883AC49 § 140,205
5884A050 324 319
465,024
U.S. Department of Human Services
Passed through the lowa Department of Health:
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities 84.184 5184L310020 343,442
Preject Grants and Cooperative Agreements for
Tuberculesis Control Programs 93.116 5883TBOO 17,995
5884TB0O1 5,494
Chiidhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Projects 93.197 5884LP11 47,470
Immunization Grants G3.268 58831415 28,609
58841415 24,162
Centers for Disease Cantrol and Prevention-
Investigations and Technical Assistance 93.283 5883EHCY 1,806
5884EHCE 10,000
58383BT213 54
5883BT204 369,432
5884BT0Y9 173,198
5883BT99 5,662
5884BT03 201,704
K884WW15 20,126
Health Care and Other Facilities 93.887 C78HF00877-01-00 168,405
Coopperative Agreements for State-Based Comprehensive
Breast and Cervical Cancer Early Detection Programs 93.919 5884NE24 51,884
Human Immuncdeficiency Virus (HiVYAcquired
Immunocdeficiency Virus Syndrome (AIDS) Surveillance G3.644 5883AP15 42,111
5884AP15 8,675
Adolescent Family Life - Demonstration Grants 93.995 GAPHPAQD2027-32-01 38,867
BAPHPACJZ2027-03-02 277,335
1,834,505

Totai Expenditures of Federal Awards (Component Unit)
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CASH BASIS) — {Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Note 1 -

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the
federal grant activity of Woodbury County and its discretely presented
component unit and is presented on the cash basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
OME Circular A-133, Audits of Stafes, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial
statements.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Summary of the Independent Auditor's Results

Part Il:

An unqualified opinion was issued on the financial statements.

Reportable conditions in internal control over financial reporting were disciased by the audit of
the financial statements, including material weaknesses,

The audit did not disclose any noncompliance which is material to the financial statements.

No reportable conditicns in internal contrel over major programs were disclosed.

An unqualified opinion was issued on compliance with requirements applicable to each major
proegrarm.

The audit disclosed no findings which were required to be reported in accordance with Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Section .510{a).

The doilar threshold used to distinguish hetween Type A and Type B programs was $300,000.
The County of Woodbury, lowa, did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

The major programs identified on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federai Awards include:

CFDA # Program Name
10.904 Watershed Protection and Flood Prevention

20205 Highway Planning and Construction
93.667 Sacial Services Block Grant

Speciat Suppiemental Nutrition Program for
Women, Infants, and Children

93.995 Adolescent Family Life Demonstration Projects
Safe and Drug-Free Scheols and Communities —
National Programs

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention —
Investigations and Technical Assistance

10.557

84 184

93.283

Findings Related to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government

Auditing Standards - None

REPORTABLE CONDITIONS:

04-ll-A:

Computer System

Observation: The Auditor and Treasurer's Offices operate on two separate computer
software systems. The dual system requires additional data entry because the systems
are not integrated. The receipts as recorded in the Treasurer's office must be entered
manuzlly by the auditor to facilitate financial reporting. There are also two separate
property tax and valuation software packages used., Each time a transaction or piece of
information is handled manually the likelihood of an error is increased.

Recommendation — The County should consider converting to one software package. The
efficiencies achieved and the potential for error with muitiple systems should be eliminated.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Response and Corrective Action Plan — The County will appoint a committee to review the
current information systems and make recommendations to change to a single system.

Conclusion — Response accepted.

Part Ill: Findings Related to Federal Expenditures — Nane.

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting

04-1V-A

04-1vV-B

04-V-C

04-1IV-D

04-1V-E

04-IV-F

04-lv-G

Official Depositories — A resolution naming official depositories has been adopted by the
Board. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the resolution were not exceeded during
the year, except for deposits at Liberty National Bank in September 2003.

Recommendation — A new resolution in amounts sufficient to cover anticipated balances at
all approved depositories should be adopted by the board.

Response — The Board did approve a new resolution in January 2004 which is sufficient to
cover anticipated balances.

Conclusion — Response accepted.

Certified Budget — Disbursements for the year ended June 30, 2004, exceed the amounis
budgeted.

Questionable Expenses — We noted no expenditures that we believe may constitute
unlawful expenditures from public funds as defined in an Attorney General’s opinien dated
April 25, 1979.

Travel Expenses — No expenditures of County money for travel expenses of spouses of
County officials or employees were noted.

Business Transactions — There were no business transactions between the County and
CGaounty officials and/or employees during the year ended June 30, 2004

Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of Counly officials and employees is in
accordance with statutory provisions.

tas o )
Lo W LA

Board Minutes — Interfund transfers were not approved in the minu

accordance with Chapter 331.432 of the Code of lowa.

Recommendation — The County should document the approval of interfund transfers in the
minutes of the Board of Supervisors of the County in accordance with Chapter 331.432 of

the Code of lowa

Response ~ The County will ensure that approval of interfund transfers will be documented
in the minutes of the Board of Supervisors of the County.

Conclusion — Response accepted.
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COUNTY OF WOODBURY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2004

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting — {Continued)

04-IV-H

04-1V-1

04-1v-J

04-1V-K

Cede of Ordinances — In accordance with Chapter 331.320(a) of the Code of lowa, a code
of ordinances should be compiled at lease once every five years. The County has not
done this in over five years.

Recommendation — The County should comply as soon as possible,

Response ~ Personnel is limited, however, we will comply as soon as time permits.
Conclusion - Response accepted.

County Extension Office — The County Extension Office is operated under the autharity of
Chapter 176A of the Code of lowa and serves as an agency of the State of lowa. This fund
is administered by an extension council separate and distinct from the County operations
and, consequently, is not included in these financial statements. Disbursements during the
year ended June 30, 2004 for the County Extension Office did not exceed the amount
budgeted.

Resource Enhancement and Protection Certification — The County did dedicate enough
property tax revenue to conservation purposes as required by Chapter 455A.19(1)(b} of the
Code of lowa in order to receive the additional REAP funds allecated in accordance with
subsections (b}2) and (1)(3).

Deposits and Investments — No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and
investment provisions of Chapter 12B and 12C of the Code of lowa and the County’'s
investment policy were noted.
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COUNTY OF WOODEBURY, IOWA
Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2003

03-1l-A:  Purchasing

Obsegrvation: The County does not currently utilize centralized purchasing. Also, the
County currently utilizes countywide credit cards with no formal written policy to govern the
use of the cards,

Recemmendation:  The County shouid consider the advantages of a centralized
purchasing system. Betlter internai controi over purchasing and possible cast savings
couid be obtained if the policy were to be implemented. Also, the County should reduce the
usage of County held credit cards and consider the implementation of written
documentation for their use.

Gurrent Status: The County has established alternative controls which would mitigate the
risks associated with the above comment.

03-I-B: Compuier System

Observation. The Auditor and Treasurer's Offices operate on two separate computer
software systems. The dual system requires additional data entry because the systems
are not integrated. The receipts as recorded in the Treasurer's office must be entered
manuaily by the auditor to facilitate financial reporting. There are also two separate
property tax and valuation software packages used. Each time a transaction or piece of
information is handied manually the likelihcod of an error is increased.

Recommendation — The County should censider converting to ane software package. The
efficiencies achieved and the potential for error with multiple systems should be eliminated.

Current Status: - The finding still exists at June 30, 2304 {See Comment 04-1i-A).
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Suite 700 Terra Centre
600 Fourth Street

WILLIAMS

— & COMPANYsc Sioux City, 1A 51102-0298

Certified Public Accountants Phone (712) 252-5337

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Supervisors
Woodbury County, lowa:

Compliance:

We have audited the compliance of WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA and its discretely presented
component unit with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management
and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2004. Woodbury County, lowa and its discretely presented
component unit's major federal programs are identified in Part | of the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, reguiations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Woodbury County, lowa's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinicn on Woodbury County, lowa's compliance based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards,
Chapter 11 of the Caode of lowa, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profift Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncaompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal pregram occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about Woodbury County, lowa's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Woodbury County,
lowa's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Woodbury Gounty, lowa and its discretely presented component unit complied, in all
material respects, with the reguirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2004,

Internal Control Over Caompliance:

The management of Woadbury County, lowa is responsible for establishing and maintaining sffective
internat control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federat programs. In ptanning and performing our audit, we considered Woodbury Gounty, lowa's internal
controi over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program in order {o determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal contro! over compliance in accordance with CMB Circular A-
133
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Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal controt that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a refatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with applicabie requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
that would be material in refation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We
noted no matters involving the internai control over compiiance and its operation that we consider to be

material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of supervisors, management and
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone other than those specified parties.

Lolbioms ¢ Conponsg, P-C.

Certified Public Accountants

Sioux City, lowa
Qctober 22, 2004
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Suite 700 Terra Centre
600 Fourth Sireet

(W[ L P.O. Box 298

L‘& COMPANYpc Sioux City, 1A 51102-0298

FPhaone (712} 252-5337

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
Woaodbury County, fowa

We have audited the financial statements of WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA and its discretely presented
companent unit as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 22, 2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S generally accepted auditing standards,
Chapter 11 of the Code of lowa, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance:

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Woodbury County, lowa's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants, nencompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compiiance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are reguired to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the County’s operations for the year ended
June 30, 2004 are based exclusively on knowiedge obtained from procedures performed during our audit
of the basic financial statements of the County. Since our sudit was based on tasts and samples, not ail
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
invelving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those
statutes. Prior year statutory comments have all heen resolved.

Internal Conftrol Over Financial Reporting:

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Woodbury County, lowa's internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our apinion
an the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control aver financial reparting.
However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation
that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our
attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal contral over financisi
reporting that, in our judgrment, could adversely affect Woodbury County, lowa's ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial
statements. A reportable condition is described in Part Il of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs as itern 04-11-A.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controi
compeonents does not reduce to a relatively iow level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Qur
consideration of the internal control aver financiat reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
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repertable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe item D4-
-Ato be a material weakness.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Supervisors, management and
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used oy
anyone cther than those specified parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of
Woadbury County during the course of our audit.

If you have any questions concerning any of the above matters we would be pleased to discuss them
with you at your convenience.

ZJM* wal P-C.

Certified Public Accountants

Sioux City, lowa
October 22, 2004
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